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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

ubstantial growth and strong earnings contributed to a solid year
Sfor Reddy lce. Weather was favorable during the early part of
the year in many of our markets, and we were able to operate under
more traditional conditions than the prior year when extreme hur-
ricane activity affected several regions of the country. Operating
in a more conventional environment, the company sold more than
1.9 million tons of ice to its customers. Additionally, we exceeded our
financial targets and successfully executed various operational goals
that included plant upgrades, increased manufacturing capacity, and
profit margin stability in the face of record-high fuel and bag costs.

Reddy lce also accomplished other significant organizational initia-
tives that improved operational efficiency and service capability to the
approximately 82,000 customer locations the company serves coast to
coast. We are extremely pleased toc have completed the implementation
of handheld technology on all of the company’s routes and the intro-
duction of these important tools to our distributor partners. As the year
progressed, more customers chose to adopt our ten-pound bag as their
primary package, resulting in this product accounting for more than half William P. Brick & Jimmy C. Weaver

of all our small bag volume on a unit basis. Through initiatives such as

these, Reddy lce is committed to remaining the provider of choice to the nation’s leading grocery retailers, convenience
store operators, drug store chains, and special events. By strengthening these relationships, the company is well posi-
tioned to benefit from the ongoing consolidation taking place within these industries.

We are pleased to have completed 10 acquisitions during 2006 and 5 additional acquisitions in the first quarter of 2007 to
further solidify our position and add value in important markets. Consolidation within the packaged ice segment continues
to provide an excellent opportunity for growth. Our goal is to continue to seek out acquisition targets that strategically fit
our operations, strengthen our operating base, and bring accretive growth to our shareholders.

The year 2006 was also important for Reddy lce as we completed our first full fiscal year as a public company. Since the
completion of our initial public offering in August 2005, we have reduced leverage, increased quarterly dividend payouts,
and provided stock appreciation for shareholders.

Looking forward, we are well positioned to maintain our industry leadership and growth in the high-demand markets
in which we operate. We recently announced a succession plan, effective May 17, 2007, appointing Jimmy C. Weaver as
Chief Executive Officer and President. Mr. Weaver has been a key factor in the company’s development and has in-depth
industry experience, having served more than 10 years as Chief Operating Officer or President of Reddy Ice. Additionally,
Raymond D. Booth, Senior Vice President of the Mid Atlantic Region, will be promoted to Chief Operating Officer and Exec-
utive Vice President. | will assume the position of Executive Chairman and remain as Chairman of the Board. We believe
this will be a seamless transition and will further strengthen our company for continued success.

In closing, | apptaud our dedicated employees whose hard work and attention to excellence exemplify the Reddy lce
mission to provide superior products and service to its customers. | want to thank all of our loyal employees, and to our
shareholders, we extend our appreciation for your continued support, We look forward to reporting another successful
year in 2007.

s 204

William P. Brick
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer




SALES AND SERVICE

* tation and operating procedures to
ensure every bag of ice is clean,
pure, and odorless. Inspections are
conducted continuously with micro-
bivlogical testing being of primary
importance. A clear, clean taste is
also important and Reddy [ce uses
multiple water filtration methods as
needed to maintain consistency in
all its packaged ice products.

Reddyice® brand products carry the

seal of the International Packaged ice
Association. This seal means that
the product meets the association’s
stringent quality and safety policies.
These standards regulate quality

of the water source, operating envi-
ronments and bagging processes

to assure consumers of the safest,
highast-quality packaged ice

they can buy.
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serves a diversified range of customers located in 31 states and the District of Columbia
through multiple distribution channels, including warehouse and direct-to-store delivery.
Approximately 82,000 customer locations benefit from the company’s extensive manu-
facturing capability and geographic reach. This network facilitates the ability to serve
customers who need multi-state service as well as regionally and locally based outlets.
These outlets include national supermarket chains, independent retailers, mass merchan-
disers, gas and convenience stores, drugstores, food service facilities, airlings, construction

companies, government agencies, and recreational venues.

As more and more customers recognize
the importance of buying packaged ice
from a supplier they can depend on in
times of peak demand, Reddy ice is clearly
able to demonstrate a distinct advantage.
Offering a variety of packagedice products
in a range of sizes, the company enjoys
solid, long-term relationships with a great
majority of regional and natienal retail-
ers and is generally the sole provider of
packaged ice to these retailers in the mar-
kets it serves. By offering superior service
and extensive distribution capabilities to
these customers, Reddy ice has been able
to keep pace with their expansion and alse
benefit from ongoing consolidation in the

grocery and convenience store industries.

This standard of service is consistently
maintained through the company’s abil-
ity to utilize its geographic footprint and
distribution capability to respond quickly
to seasonal or regional fluctuations in
demand. Usage surges can be caused by
weather extremes or emergency situ-
ations when normal supply chains are
under pressure. Through a system that
encompasses 122 manufacturing and
distribution facilities along with 175 stra-
tegically positioned distributors and
co-packers throughout its operating
areas, Reddy Ice is able to meet its
customers’ needs for packaged ice

throughout the year.

Reddy Ice is the largest supplier of packaged ice in the United States and continued to
strengthen this position during 2006 with sales growing to $346 million. The company

The packaged ice category is typically one
of the highest gross margin items in the
store. Reddy Ice is continually helping its
customers realize maximum profitability
in theice category. The 10-pound bag is an
initiative that has proven to aid customers
in this effort, providing additional volume

and opportunity for higher retail sales.

Reddy lce is committed to excellence in the
packaged ice industry. Customers have a
choice of delivery methods and the peace
of mind that comes from an unmatched
service and manufacturing network, con-
stant supply, electronic billing systems,
and quality products at competi-

tive prices — all of which

are important factors in
setting the standard
for the packaged

ice industry.
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ACQUISITIONS

The role of acquisitions is, and will continue to be, a critical component of

the growth strategy of Reddy lce. Acquisitions support the need for the broad

geographic coverage demanded by our national and regional chains. Along
with expanding the company’s presence in strategic areas, acquisitions pro-
vide deeper penetration within existing markets, creating

distribution efficiencies. The team at Reddy Ice is

experienced in integrating additional opera-
tions into the organization, enabling
the company to quickly realize

economies of scale.

ACAUISITIONS UPDATE

Sriee 2008, Reddy leo fes eompleied 30 eseuisifions,
expandedﬂg’?t ‘ nedslofleiployeeseand]
‘ rsandsiof itohs of capacity are gust some of the :
advantagesrealized from acquisitions asthecompany

continues to meet the needs of its customers and

drive value for shareholders.



OPERATIONS

As the nation’s largest supplier of packaged ice, operations are a critical part of

MERGHANRISING

Beddylicelutilizeskallaggeloumben
ofimerchandisinglunitstacLos s|itsy
operating-areaitgfsionelandlnromote]

store loca-
tions and deliver tremendous brand
awareness and connection with
consumers. Approximately 79,000
merchandising units are deployed
across the company's service area
along with approximately 3,000 lce
Factary bagging systems. The Ice
Factory®is a proprietary, automated
system capable of making and
packaging a ton of bagged ice per
day, right at the retailer’s store site.
This self-contained merchandising
unit ensures a constant supply
for high-volume locations and
provides customers with & cost-
efficient manner of meeting their

supply needs.

maintaining coverage and service levels for all Reddy Ice customers. With daity

capacity of approximately 17,000 tons, Reddy Ice produces bagged ice in 63 manufactur-

ing facilities across its operating area. These production facilities are further supported

by 59 distribution centers and a distributor network that provides extensive coverage

and broad geographic reach. Additionally, the company operates 5 cold storage facilities

and 1 bottled water manufacturing plant.

Production and storage is only the first
step in serving customers. Making sure
the products arrive at the store in the
proper condition is just as important. So
Reddy Ice has developed an infrastruc-
ture that includes over 1,200 vehicles
that complete approximately 2 million
deliveries annually. Combined with elec-
tronic route accounting and handheld
technology. customers of Reddy Ice are
assured of improved communications
and continuous supply as demand
grows. Handheld technology has proven
efficient and customer-friendly, and
is being expanded to the company’s

distributor partners.

To effectively serve customers and ensure
ample product for peak demand and
disaster relief, Reddy lce continually
evaluates production capability and
upgrades manufacturing equipment
to take advantage of modern, efficient
During 20086,

extensive upgrades and capacity

processing techniques.

enhancements were completed in

several of the company’s man-

facility to replace the existing plant that
serves the Tampa, Florida market. Plans
are to compiete this new facility during

summer 2007,

Reddy lce considers its obligation to pro-
vide optimum service levels an ongoing
commitment. With the company’s stabil-
ity and scale in high-demand markets,
Reddy Ice

provide efficient, reliable response and

intends to continue to

value to those

it serves.

ufacturing facilities. These
improvements add addi- . j /
ttonal support to the

company’s ability to offer

unmatched service to

its customers, The com-
pany is also pleased to
have started con-

struction on a new

manufacturing
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UNCERTAINTY OF FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION

Other than statements of historical facts, statements made in this Form 10-K, statements made by us
in periodic press releases, oral statements made by our management to analysts and stockholders and
statements made in the course of presentations about our company constitute “forward-looking
statements” intended to qualify for the safe harbor from liability established by the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We believe the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements
are accurate. However, we cannot assure you that such expectations will occur. These forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual
results, performance or achievements to be materially different from future results expressed or implied by
the forward-looking statements. Factors you should consider that could cause these differences are:

¢ general economic trends and seasonality;
s weather conditions;

« the ability of our subsidiary to make distributions to us in amounts sufficient to make dividend
payments to our stockholders in accordance with our dividend policy;

e our substantial leverage and ability to service our debt and pay dividends;
+ the restrictive covenants under our indebtedness;
» the availability of capital sources;

» fluctuations in our operating costs, including in the prices of electricity, fuel, polyethylene and other
required expenses;

+ competitive practices in the industry in which we compete;

¢ changes in labor conditions;

= our capital expenditure requircments;

» the risks associated with acquisitions and the failure to integrate acquired businesses;
¢ technological changes and innovations;

s legislative or regulatory requirements; and

¢ all the other factors described herein under Item 1A.

You should not unduly rely on these forward-locking statements as they speak only as of the date of
this report. Except as required by law, we are not obligated to publicly release any revisions to these
forward looking statements to reflect cvents or circumstances occurring after the date of this report or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipatec events. Important factors that could cause our actual results to
differ materially from our expectations are discussed elsewhere in this report.

WEBSITE ACCESS TO COMPANY’S REPORTS

Our Internet website address is wiww.reddyice.com. Qur annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form §-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available free of charge
through our website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with, or furnished
to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Board of Directors
committee charters (including the charters of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, and
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee), Insider Trading Policy and Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics are also available on our website.




PART 1
ITEM 1. Business
BUSINESS

Overview

We are the largest manufacturer and distributor of packaged ice in the United States, serving
approximately 82,000 customer locations in 31 states and the District of Columbia under the Reddy Ice®
brand name. Our principal product is ice packaged in seven to fifty pound bags, which we sell to a highly
diversified customer base, including supermarkets, mass merchants and convenience stores. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, we sold approximately 1.9 million tons of ice. Qur products are primarily sold
throughout the southern United States (the “Sun Belt”), one of the most attractive regions in the country
for packaged ice sales due to warm weather, extended peak selling seasons and favorable population
growth patterns. Population growth is one of the primary drivers for growth in demand for packaged ice,
and we operate in many of the fastest growing metropolitan areas in the United States. In addition, our
broad geographic reach helps insulate us from the impact of cool or rainy weather in any particular region.
No other manufacturer and distributor of packaged ice in the United States has the geographic presence,
infrastructure or capacity necessary to meet the multi-state demands of customers in our markets.

Qur business is characterized by consistent annual customer demand, attractive margins and modest
annual capital requirements. Based on past experience, retail consumer demand for packaged ice is
relatively unaffected by adverse economic conditions due to its low cost and the lack of readily available
substitutes. For the year ended December 31, 2006, we had revenues and net income of $346.0 million and
$14.7 million, respectively.

We operate in two business segments: ice products and non-ice products and operations. Ice products
accounted for approximately 96% of our total revenues in 2006. This segment consists of the traditional
manufacture and delivery of ice from a central point of production to the point of sale as well as sales from
The Ice Factory® machines, our proprietary equipment located in our customers” high volume locations
that produce, package and store ice through an automated, self-contained process. In 2006, traditional ice
manufacturing and Ice Factory sales accounted for approximately 90% and 10% of our ice product
revenues, respectively. Non-ice products and operations consist of refrigerated warehousing and the
manufacture and sale of bottled water.

We market our ice products to satisfy a broad range of customers, primarily under the Reddy Ice
brand name. We produce ice in cube, half-moon, cylindrical and crushed forms (collectively referred to as
“cubed ice”) as well as block forms. Our primary ice product is cubed ice packaged in small bags (typically
seven and ten pounds), which we sell principally to convenience stores and supermarkets. We also sell
significant amounts of medium bags of cubed ice (16 to 20 pounds) and ten-pound block bags to the same
convenience stores and supermarkets. We sell cubed ice in assorted bag sizes ranging from 16 to 50 pounds
to restaurants, bars, stadiums, vendors and caterers and block ice in 10-, 25- and 300- pound sizes to our
commercial, agricultural and industrial customers. The majority of our sales are direct to supermarket
chains, convenience stores, mass merchants and other commercial customers. In addition, a portion of our
products is sold through distributors who deliver ice to our customers on our behalf and who resell ice to
their own customers.

We have built a strong and loyal customer base by providing a high level of service and quality at
competitive prices utilizing our extensive network of ice manufacturing plants and distribution centers. We
have a diverse customer base and long-standing relationships with our customers across all major retail
channels as evidenced by our high retention rates with prominent supermarkets, mass merchants and
convenience stores such as Albertson’s, Circle-K, ExxonMobil, Food Lion, Kroger, 7-Eleven and Wal-
Mart. Our largest customer, Wal-Mart and Sam'’s Club on a combined basis, accounted for approximately
11% of our revenue in 2006 and 2005. Most of our major customers, including nineteen of our top twenty




retail ice customers in terms of revenues, have purchased ice from us and our predecessor companies for
over a decade. Within our markets, we are generally the sole supplier of packaged ice to the majority of
our top twenty retail ice customers. The percentage of our total revenues derived from and volume sold to
national and regional convenience and grocery store chains has grown over the last several years as each of
these retail channels has consolidated. We have benefited from supplying these national and regional
retailers as many of these customers have grown at rates in excess of indusiry averages.

At March 9, 2007, we owned or operated 63 ice manufacturing facilities, 59 distribution centers,
approximately 79,000 merchandisers (cold storage units installed at customer locations), approximately
3,000 Ice Factories, five refrigerated warechouses and one bottled water plant. As of the same date, we had
an aggregate daily ice manufacturing capacity of approximately 17,000 tons.

Industry Overview

We estimate that the annual wholesale market for packaged ice is approximately $1.8 billion, which
includes manufacturers such as ourselves and in-house production, primarily by small retail operations
and, to a lesser extent, by large retailers. The packaged ice industry is highly fragmented and is led by us
and two multi-state operators. The industry includes numerous locat and regional companies of varying
size and resources, with most ice manufacturers having annual revenues of less than $1 million.

Traditional ice manufacturers produce and distribute packaged ice from a centrally located facility
and, as a result of high transportation costs, are typically limited to servicing customers within
approximately 100 miles from the point of production. Packaged ice suppliers compete based primarily on
service, quality and price, with success dependent upon prompt and reliable delivery during peak seasonal
months, an efficient manufacturing and distribution system, high-density customer distribution routes
within a region and high customer concentration in a market area. Each customer location typically carries
one brand of ice provided by a single supplier.

The packaged ice industry is highly seasonal, characterized by peak demand during the warmer
months of May through September, with an extended peak selling season in the southern United States.
We believe volume growth in the packaged ice industry generally tracks population growth, thus favoring
geographic markets with faster population growth. Demand within specific geographic markets can also be
affected by weather conditions, with cool or rainy weather negatively impacting ice purchases.

Business Strategy

Qur business strategy is to strengthen our competitive position, increase revenues and drive
profitability by:

Enhancing Revenue Growth. We believe there are several opportunities to maintain and grow our
revenues through:

Growth from Our Existing Customers. We intend to capitalize on our long-standing customer
relationships by growing with our large national and regional customers as they seek to increase their
market penetration and consolidate the retail segments in which they operate. As the sole supplier in
our regions to the majority of these customers, we are well positioned to share in our customers’
growth. In addition, for certain customers for whom we are not the sole supplier, there is a likely
opportunity to capture incremental volume as these customers continue to reduce their supplier base
in order to achieve effictencies across the supply chain.

New Product Introductions. 'We continue to broaden our product offerings through the
introduction of new sizes of bagged ice. We believe that introducing new bag sizes at various price
points offers an opportunity to ¢nhance our product mix and increase our sales and operating
margins.




Growth from Outsourcing Trends of Large Retailers.  Several large retailers continue to produce
packaged ice in-house. Consistent with general outsourcing trends among retailers, we have assumed
certain ice supply requirements in the past for a number of large retail chains that previously operated
captive ice manufacturing facilities, including Albertson’s, HEB and Safeway. We should be able to
capture additional volume from new and existing customers if retailers continue to choose to
outsource and focus on their core competencies.

Selectively Pursuing Acquisitions. The packaged ice industry continues to be highly fragmented. We
will continue to pursue strategic acquisitions in existing or adjacent geographic markets that enhance the
density of our distribution routes, provide capacity rationalization opportunities, increase our market
penetration in existing markets or expand our presence in contiguous markets. Through March 9, 2007, we
have completed five acquisitions with an aggregate acquisition cost of approximately $11.3 million. In 2006,
we acquired ten businesses for purchase prices aggregating approximately $12.9 million, including direct
acquisition costs of $0.3 million. In 2005, we acquired two businesses for total acquisition costs of
approximately $0.9 million and purchased certain leased real estate assets for a purchase price of
$2.5 million. In addition, we made 11 acquisitions in 2004, for purchase prices aggregating $16.9 million.
We completed the integration of these acquisitions with our operations, financial and management systems
and customer service departments during the year in which these acquisitions were consummated.

Continuing Efficiency Improvements. In the last six years, we have consolidated our ice manufacturing
and distribution facilities, reducing the total number of facilities (including all acquired facilities) from 148
to 122 at March 9, 2007. As we have reduced the number of facilities, we have increased our overall
capacity by relocating equipment and investing in new equipment. We have identified several opportunities
for continued facility consolidations that we expect can be implemented without a significant increase in
capital expenditures. In addition, we believe there are opportunities for continued efficiency improvements
through distribution route optimization, the introduction of new technologies and processes in our plants
and consolidation of administrative functions.

Ice Products

We market our ice products to satisfy a broad range of customers, primarily under the Reddy Ice
brand name. We produce our ice in cube, half-moon, cylindrical and crushed forms and also produce ice in
block forms. Our primary ice product is cubed ice packaged in small bags (primarily seven and ten
pounds), which we sell principally to convenience stores and supermarkets. We also sell significant
amounts of medium bags of cubed ice (16 to 20 pounds) and ten-pound block bags to the same
convenience stores and supermarkets. We sell cubed ice in assorted bag sizes ranging from 16 to 50 pounds
to restaurants, bars, stadiums, vendors and caterers. In addition, we sell block ice in 10-, 25- and 300-pound
sizes to commercial, agricultural and industrial customers.

We continue to broaden our product offerings through the introduction of new sizes of bagged cubed
ice as well as new ice products. New bag sizes such as ten-pound bags of cubed ice may offer an
opportunity to enhance revenue and income from operations. In 2006, sales of ten-pound bags of cubed ice
accounted for approximately 42% of ice product revenues, an increase from approximately 24%, 5% and
0.1% of ice product revenues in 2003, 2004 and 2003, respectively. We expect sales of ten-pound bags as a
percentage of ice product revenues to continue to increase in 2007. In addition, we continue to develop and
test new products, packaging and service options.

Manufacturing

To ensure that the water supplied by each municipality meets our quality standards, the water is often
filtered for use in the ice making process. We use low micron filtration, carbon filtration, water softeners,
ozone generators and reverse osmosis as needed to achieve the proper water quality needed to produce a
clear product. All of our ice manufacturing facilities are certified by the International Packaged Ice



Association. This certification requires the inspection of more than 50 areas of operations, ensuring high
water quality, a sanitary operating environment and safe working conditions.

We manufacture ice in two ways: the vertical plate method and the vertical tube method. In both
methods, water is circulated over cold vertical surfaces where the flowing water freezes into ice. The
process of freezing the water while in motion acts as a final purification process by extracting minerals and
other dissolved solids still present in the water following the filtration process. When the ice builds to the
proper thickness it is detached from the plates or tubes by heating the freezing surfaces. In the vertical
plate method, the sheet of ice falls onto a motor driven cutter, which chops the ice into smaller sizes and
empties into a collection bin, In the vertical tube method, as the tube of ice falls into the collection bin, it is
cut into small cubes by a rotating cutter. From the collection bin, the ice is transferred to a central
refrigerated holding bin where the ice is mechanically raked and dried before it is packaged.

From the central refrigerated holding bin, the ice is then mechanically screened to remove any small
pieces and to separate the ice according to size. The ice is then transferred to packaging machines, where
the ice is measured and packaged into a variety of bag sizes. After bagging the ice, the product is palletized
and stored in our cold storage vaults before being delivered to customer locations.

For the majority of our manufacturing facilities, we use ammonia as the refrigerant in the ice makers
and storage vaults. Ammonia is a common refrigerant used for most industrial refrigeration systems.

Distribution

Due to high product transportation and shipping costs, the ice business has historically been a regional
service business in which manufacturers produce and package ice at centrally located facilities and
distribute to a limited market radius of approximately 100 miles. Due to these geographic constraints and
the limited amount of product differentiation in the packaged ice industry, we focus on maintaining an
efficient service, distribution and pricing system in each of our markets. We deliver ice through both
traditional distribution methods and the on-site Ice Factory system. We believe that this unique
combination of distribution service offerings enables us 1o better serve our customers.

Traditional Distribution. We produce and bag ice at centrally located manufacturing facilities and
subsequentiy sell the product with several delivery alternatives. These delivery alternatives include
(1) delivering packaged ice directly to the customers’ retail locations and stocking our merchandisers,
(2) delivering pallet quantities to retail locations where our customers’ employees stock our merchandisers
and (3) warchouse shipments of ice from our facilities to the facilities of our customers who choose to
deliver ice to their retail locations through their own distribution network. Our products are delivered
through our own distribution operation as well as by third-party distributors who transport and deliver the
product to our customers. These distributors also purchase ice from us for resale to their own customers.
To store ice inventory, we own or rent appropriate freezer space. We own or lease approximately 1,200
trucks for distribution in non-peak periods. During the peak summer months, we estimate that we may rent
up to approximately 200 additional trucks.

We currently serve approximately 79,000 customer locations through traditional distribution methods,
principally through the use of our company owned ice merchandisers that are installed at most of our
customers” locations, Qur size and scale provide us with an efficient production and distribution network
by providing us with customer density, additional production capacity and dedicated distribution centers.
The increased customer density has improved routing efficiencies and reduced our transportation costs,
which represent our largest cost component. In addition, our production capacity in adjacent geographic
markets has allowed us to avoid “out of ice” situations and related lost sales during peak periods.




In 2006, traditional ice manufacturing and distribution accounted for approximately 90% of our ice
segment revenues.

Ice Factory. The Ice Factory is our proprietary self-contained automated system placed at the
customer’s location that manufactures, bags and stores packaged ice. Each unit is built to our specifications
and includes an ice maker, merchandiser and bagging machine. The unit is capable of producing and
packaging approximately one ton of ice per day. The Ice Factory is most frequently used in high volume
supermarkets and other commercial locations. The Ice Factory, when combined with traditional delivery
methods, provides our customers with the flexibility to meet their specific supply requirements in a cost-
efficient manner. Transportation costs, the most significant costs of traditional ice delivery, are eliminated
by on-site production. As a result of these cost savings, we believe that The Ice Factory provides us with
operating efficiencies in high volume locations compared to traditional ice delivery.

Ice Factory locations are selected only after a thorough review and analysis of historical ice sales and
the local competitive environment. Approximately 800 of our installed base of approximately 3,000 lce
Factories are operated and maintained by other ice suppliers under management agrecments with us. In
2006, Ice Factories accounted for approximately 10% of ice product revenues.

We believe that providing frequent, regular and reliable service and support to our customers is one of
the most important elements in operating our Ice Factory network. We have a routine route servicing
system, which utilizes trained service representatives to perform the regularly scheduled service
procedures, and we maintain toll-free telephone support for responding to customer calls regarding repairs
and maintenance.

Customers

We market our ice products to a broad range of customers, including supermarket chains, mass
merchants, convenience stores, wholesale ice and food distributors, commercial users, resorts and
restaurants, agricultural buyers and competitive producers and self-suppliers who experience supply
shortages. The primary purchasers of our traditional ice products and users of our Ice Factory are retailers
with no internal ice production capacity. We believe that our high leve! of service and quality products at
competitive prices results in customer loyalty.

We have a diversified customer base. Qur largest customer, Wal-Mart and Sam’s Club on a combined
basis, accounted for approximately 11% of our revenues in 2006 and 2005 and 10% of our revenues in
2004. Qur other largest national accounts include the supermarket chains Albertson’s, Kroger and
Safeway; and the convenience and petroleum store chains Circle K, 7-Eleven and ExxonMobil. Major
regional customers include the supermarket chains Publix, Winn-Dixie, Food Lion and HEB and the
convenience and petroleum store chains Valero, The Pantry and RaceTrac. In 2006, our sales, measured in
terms of tons, were allocated to our retail channels as follows: 45% to supermarket and mass merchant
chains, 28% to convenience and petroleum store chains, 13% to distributors and 14% to other channels.
The percentage of our total volume, measured in terms of tons, sold to national and regional supermarket,
mass merchant and convenience and petroleum store chains has grown from approximately 54% in 2002 to
approximately 58% in 2006, due to consolidation within those retail channels.

Sales and Marketing

Our sales and marketing personnel communicate regularly with our existing customers and initiate
discussions with potential new customers. Sales and marketing personne! at our corporate headquarters,
along with certain members of our senior management, communicate with our larger national and regional
chain customers while our field personnel handle smalter local customers and local representatives of our
larger national and regional chain customers.




Typically, our customer relationships are long term and turnover of major customers is infrequent. As
a result, a significant portion of our corporate sales and marketing efforts are focused on maintaining and
expanding these existing relationships. We also regularly explore and develop new customer relationships.

Competition

The traditional packaged ice industry is highly competitive and highly fragmented. In the United
States, the traditional packaged ice industry is led by us and two smaller, multi-state, multi-facility
suppliers. Although these multi-state suppliers generally do not serve customers in our primary markets,
we do compete with numerous smaller local and regional companies of varying sizes and competitive
resources. Most ice manufacturers have annual revenues of less than $1 million. In addition to our direct
competition, numerous convenience and grocery retailers operate commercial ice plants for internal use or
manufacture and bag ice at their store locations. However, our ice products generally do not face
competition within a particular store as almost all of our customers rely on a single supplier of packaged
ice at each point of sale. From time to time, new competitors emerge to compete with us in various areas,
including the technology and distribution methods included in The Ice Factory. Historically, such
competitors have not had a significant impact on our business.

Competition in the packaged ice industry is based primarily on service, quality and price. To compete
successfully, an ice manufacturer must be able to offer significant supply and distribution capacity on a
seasonal basis while maintaining cost efficiency. We are the largest company in the packaged ice industry,
serving customers in 31 states and the District of Columbia. Our large geographic footprint, manufacturing
capacity and distribution infrastructure, including traditional ice delivery, warehouse delivery and The Ice
Factory, gives us the ability to service large retailers across multiple states and regions in a variety of ways.
Because of these attributes, we are positioned to benefit from continued consolidation within our customer
base and from increased reliance by national and regional customers on suppliers that serve multiple
markets.

We have been providing ice products and delivery services to many of our large customers for more
than a decade. Our customers depend on our consistent ability to ensure prompt and reliable delivery,
particularly during peak seasonal months. The strength of our customer relationships is further reinforced
by the fact that almost all of our customers rely on a single supplier of packaged ice at each point of sale.
We believe that the strength of our customer relationships provides us with a significant competitive
advantage over other suppliers in our markets.

Acquisitions

From 1997 through 1999, we pursued a consolidation strategy within the highly fragmented packaged
ice industry. During that period, we completed approximately 80 acquisitions. Significant acquisitions
included the purchase of Reddy Ice Corporation from Suiza Foods Corporation in April 1998 and the
purchase of Cassco Ice & Cold Storage, Inc., which we refer to as Cassco, in July 1998, Reddy Ice
Corporation, prior to our acquisition of it, had been active in the consolidation of the packaged ice
industry, having made 28 acquisitions from January 1997 to April 1998. Cassco was a leading regional
producer and distributor of packaged ice products and was an owner/operator of refrigerated warchouses
in the mid-Atlantic region. We did not complete any significant acquisitions from 2000 through the third
quarter of 2003.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we acquired two ice companies for purchase prices aggregating $67.4
million, the more significant of which was Triangle Ice Co., Inc. (“Triangle™), the purchase price for which
was approximately $64.3 miltion. With revenues of approximately $30.0 million for the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2003, Triangle owned or operated eight ice manufacturing facilities and one distribution center
and had an aggregate daily ice manufacturing capacity of approximately 2,085 tons.




In 2004, we completed eleven acquisitions for a total purchase price of approximately $16.9 million,
including direct acquisition costs of $0.5 million. in 2005, we completed two acquisitions for a total
purchase price of approximately $0.9 million, including direct acquisition costs of $0.02 million, and
purchased certain leased real estate assets for a purchase price of $2.5 million. The purchase price for each
of these acquisitions in 2004 and 2005 was paid from our available working capital. Annual revenue
associated with each of the acquisitions in 2004 and 2005 ranged from $0.1 million to $3.2 million and
aggregated approximately $14 million.

In 2006, we completed ten acquisitions for a total purchase price of $12.9 million, including direct
acquisition costs of $0.3 million. The purchase price for these acquisitions in 2006 was paid from our
available working capital. Annual revenue associated with each of the acquisitions ranged from
$0.1 million to $3.0 million and aggregated approximately $8.3 million. The 2006 acquisitions added four
ice manufacturing facilities and three distribution centers to the facilities we own or operate. Through
March 9, 2007, we have completed five acquisitions with an aggregate cost of approximately $11.3 million.

We will continue to consider strategic acquisitions in existing or adjacent geographic markets that
enhance the density of our distribution routes, provide capacity rationalization opportunities, increase our
market penetration in existing markets or expand our presence in contiguous markets.

Dispositions

In recent years, as part of our strategy to reduce our debt and make better use of our assets, we began
a program to evaluate and dispose of excess and non-core assets, including real estate and equipment. In
2006, 2005 and 2004, we realized $2.0 million, $2.1 million and $2.7 million, respectively, in proceeds from
non-core assets disposed of, primarily through the sale of real estate. In 2006, 2005 and 2004, we recorded
losses on the dispositions of assets in the amount of $1.1 million, $1.8 million and $0.4 million, respectively.
In 2006, an impairment of $0.4 million was recorded on two pieces of real estate. There were no
impairments or writedowns of real estate in 2005 or 2004.

Non-Ice Products

We also derive revenues from other goods and services, which consist of refrigerated warchousing and
the manufacture and sale of bottled water. Revenues from these non-ice products and operations have
accounted for approximately 4%, 5% and 6% of our total revenues during the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Employees and Labor Relations

At March 9, 2007, we directly employed approximately 1,600 company employees and retained
approximately 600 additional employees through temporary employment agencies. Each year, during the
second and third calendar quarters, our labor force increases to approximately 3,000 total employees due
to seasonal increases in ice demand and during the first and fourth calendar quarters, our labor force
decreases to approximately 2,100 total employees due to seasonal decreases in ice demand. We direct and
control the hiring process for substantially all of these seasonal employees, while using temporary
employment agencies for payroll administration and risk management of workers’ compensation
insurance. We generally have not experienced any difficulty in meeting these seasonal employment needs.
Labor, including the associated payroll taxes and benefit expenses, is our most significant expense item and
was approximately 32% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006. As of March 9, 2007, no
employees were represented by a union or subject to a collective bargaining agreement. We have never
experienced a work stoppage due to labor difficulties and we believe our relationship with our employees is
good.




Raw Materials and Suppliers

We have not experienced any material supply problems in the past with respect to our business
segments,

We use large quantities of plastic bags. The cost of bags was approximately 7% of our revenues in
2006. There are numerous plastic bag manufacturers throughout the United States with the capability of
providing for our plastic bag needs. Although one company dominates the industry, we currently purchase
bags from several companies to ensure price competition. Historically, market prices for plastic bags have
fluctuated in response to a number of factors, including changes in polyethylene prices. During 2006,
increases in the price of plastic bags resulted in approximately $3.0 million of additional costs. Significant
increases in the cost of plastic bags could have a material adverse effect on our business as we may not be
able to pass this expense through to our customers. We continue to evaluate means to control these costs
in the future.

Electricity is a significant component of our manufacturing costs. The cost of electricity was
approximately 6% of our revenues in 2006. Since 2002, our plants have been operating in both regulated
and deregulated electricity markets. A significant number of our manufacturing facilities operate in
regulated electricity markets and pay rates based on standard schedules for similar industrial facilities.
With the assistance of an outside consultant and our own internal resources, we regularly monitor and
review rate schedules, usage and other statistical data to ensure proper billing and identify additional cost
control opportunities that may be available in these regulated markets. In deregulated electricity markets,
we regularly evaluate market conditions and competing suppliers to obtain the best pricing available.
Significant increases in electricity rates in both the regulated and deregulated markets in which we operate
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations as we may not be able to pass this expense
through to our customers, The effect of electric rate increases in 2006 was approximately $1.5 million. We
expect rate increases in 2007 to have a reduced impact as market prices for oil and gas appear to have
moderated recently and a fixed rate electric supply contract in Texas has been renewed at lower prices for
a one-year term beginning in June 2067,

We also use large quantities of fuel in our distribution process. Numerous vendors throughout the
United States provide the fuel for our vehicles. Fuel expenses in 2006 were approximately 4% of revenues.
Market prices for fuel have fluctuated widely in the past. Significant increases in fuel prices could have a
material adverse effect on our business as we may not be able to pass this expense through to our
customers. During 2006, increases in the price of fuel resulted in approximately $1.4 million of additional
costs.

We have relationships with approximately 175 third party ice distributors and co-packers throughout
our market area who deliver a portion of our products to our customers and sell ice to their own
customers. We have contractual relationships with approximately 115 of these distributors and co-packers.
Qur contracts contain standard terms governing their relationship with us, including exclusivity and price.
Distributors handled approximately 31% of our ice sales, measured in terms of tons, in 2006, either
delivering the product to our customers for a delivery fee or reselling the ice to their own customers. We
generally do business with distributors under one of two arrangements. Beginning in the first half of 2004,
we began shifting the majority of our distributors to an arrangement that results in reporting sales and cost
of sales (excluding depreciation) at their gross, rather than net, amounts. Total costs related to these
distribution services were approximately 6% of our revenues in 2006.

Information Systems

Internal information systems are critical to our ability to operate efficiently. We are able to monitor
individual manufacturing plants and [ce Factory performance on a daily basis through automated and
manual reporting systems. This information enables us to track detailed cost and profitability information,
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identify opportunities to redistribute traditional manufacturing capacity among markets, assess the cost-
effectiveness of an Ice Factory at a particular location and analyze market sales trends. In addition, ail of
our accounting and financial reporting functions are integrated into a single accounting platform that is
installed in all reporting locations and connected to our central facility in Dallas, Texas. This system
facilitates centralized cash management, timely financia) reporting, consistent reporting formats and
inventory tracking. In 2005, we began implementing mobile technology with our delivery personnel to
create and record sales transactions. As of December 31, 2006, we have completed implementation of the
handheld technology at all of our locations and are now in the process of extending this mobile technology
to our distributors. As of March 9, 2007, we have completed approximately 45% of targeted distributor
routes. We are also continuing to evaluate new programs to improve and enhance certain administrative
functions

Intellectual Property

We regard The Ice Factory® as proprietary and rely primarily on a combination of patents,
nondisclosure and confidentiality agreements and other protection methods to secure and protect our
intellectual property rights. We hold or have exclusive rights to several patents relating to The Ice Factory,
including the bagging device and the overall assembly of the unit. The patents filed in North America
relating to The Ice Factory expire at various dates from 2010 through 2014. In addition, we have developed
or acquired a number of trademarks (both registered and common law) and trade names for use in our ice
business, and we hold licenses for the use of additional trademarks from third parties. We believe the use
of our trademarks creates goodwill and results in product differentiation. However, we do not believe that
the loss of any of our trademarks would have a material adverse effect on our business or results of
operations.

Government Regulation

The packaged ice industry is subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations. These
require us to, among other things, obtain licenses for our plants and machines, pay annual license and
inspection fees, comply with certain detailed design and quality standards regarding our plants and Ice
Factories and continuously control the quality and quantity of our ice.

Our packaged ice products are subject to federal and state regulation as a food pursuant to the
Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, regulations promulgated thereunder by the Food and Drug
Administration and analogous state statutes. These statutes and regulations impose comprehensive food
manufacturing practices governing the sanitary conditions of the facilities where ice is manufactured, the
design and maintenance of the equipment used to manufacture the ice, the quality of source water and the
sanitary practices of employees during ice production. We cannot predict the types of government
regulations that may be enacted in the future by federal, state or local governments or how existing or
future laws or regulations will be interpreted or enforced. The enactment of more stringent laws or
regulations or a stricter interpretation of existing laws and regulations may require additionat expenditures
by us, some of which could be material. Various states have imposed additional requirements including
(1) quarterly testing of ice for the presence of microbes and certain substances regulated under the federal
Safe Drinking Water Act, (2) specific requirements for keeping ice packaging operations separate from
other activities and (3) labeling requirements for the bags used, including the name of the ice
manufacturer, the manufacturing location and the net weight. Certain of our Ice Factories and ice
manufacturing facilities are subject to routine and random safety, health and quality inspections. We
believe that our facilities, manufacturing practices and Ice Factories are in substantial compliance with all
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations and that we will be able to maintain such substantial
compliance in the future.
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We are subject to certain health and safety regulations, including Occupational Safety and Health Act
regulations. These regulations require us to comply with certain manufacturing, health and safety
standards to protect our employees from accidents. From time to time, our employees experience
accidents on the job, which on occasion will result in a review or an investigation by the Occupational
Safety and Health Administration. Such reviews may result in penalties or the requirement that we make
modifications to our procedures or facilities, all of which may result in increased costs.

Environmental Matters

Our ice manufacturing, bottled water and cold storage operations are subject to a wide range of
environmental laws and regulations governing, among other things, air emissions, wastewater discharges,
the use, management and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous materials and wastes, and the cleanup
of contamination. These requirements are complex, changing and tend to become more stringent over
time. Noncompliance with such laws and regulations, or incidents resulting in environmental releases,
could cause us to incur substantial costs, including cleanup costs, fines and penalties, third party claims for
personal injury, investments to retrofit or upgrade our facilities and programs, or curtailment of our
operations.

Our facilities use refrigerants such as ammonia and Freon in manufacturing and cold storage
operations. We have implemented risk and safety management plans at our facilities, as required under
applicable laws and regulations, based on the quantity of ammonia stored and/or used at these locations.
We will continue to review our facilities on an ongoing basis, including recently acquired facitities, to
evaluate the feasibility of reducing on-site ammonia storage through engineering controls or, where
required, to implement or update such programs. Some of our facilities that use various Freon compounds
may not be in compliance with applicable Freon refrigerant requirements, including leak detection and
repair, recordkeeping or reporting. We will continue to identify subject facilities and to implement
procedural or mechanical changes as necessary to comply with applicable laws and regulations. To date,
maintaining compliance with and addressing violations under these and other environmentai laws and
regulations has not had a significant effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.
However, significant operating costs and capital expenditures could be incurred if additional or more
stringent requirements are imposed in the future.

From time to time, our use of ammonia has resulted in incidents that have temporarily disrupted our
manufacturing operations and resulted in liability for administrative penalties and claims for personal
injury. To date our costs to resolve these liabilities have not been material. Although we carry liability
insurance against such losses, we could incur significant costs if our coverage is not sufficient to pay for all
or a large part of any judgments against us, or if our carrier refuses coverage for these losses.

In addition, some Freon refrigerants are subject to phase-outs and, as a result, are very costly to
obtain. We will continue to reduce our dependence on such Freon compounds by upgrading or modifying
our operations and by identifying approved substitutes. Based on current information, we believe that the
Freon phase-outs will not impede our ability to produce ice and provide cold storage or result in material
cost increases for Freon substitutes.

Certain of our current and former facilities have a history of industrial or commercial operations.
Because some environmental laws can impose liability for the entire cost of cleanup upon any of the
current or former owners or operators, regardless of fault, it is possible that we could become liable for
investigating or remediating contamination at these properties if any investigation or remediation is
required in the future. Such costs have not historically had, and are not expected to have in the future, a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.,
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Seasonality

The packaged ice business is highly seasonal, characterized by peak demand during the warmer
months of May through September, with an extended peak selling season in the southern United States.
Approximately 69%, 69% and 68% of our annual revenues occurred during the second and third calendar
quarters in each of 2006, 2005 and 2004. Approximately 66% of our annual revenues also occurred during
the second and third calendar quarters of 2003 and 68% occurred during the second and third calendar
quarters of 2002, 2001 and 2000. For information on our revenues per quarter for each of 2006, 2005 and
2004, see Note 15 to our audited financial statements included under Item 8. The lower level in 2003 was
primarily due to the timing of our acquisitions, which occurred in the fourth quarter of that year, As a
result of scasonal revenue declines and a less than proportional decline in expenses during the first and
fourth quarters, we typically experience lower margins resulting in losses during these periods. In addition,
because our operating results depend significantly on sales during our peak season, our quarterly results of
operations may fluctuate significantly as a result of adverse weather during this peak selling period if the
weather is unusually cool or rainy on a national or regional basis.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Relating to Our Dividend Policy

The payment of dividends is at the sole discretion of our board of directors and the reduction or elimination of
dividends would negatively affect the market price of our common stock.

We are not obligated to pay dividends on our common stock. The payment of dividends is at the sole
discretion of our board of directors and our board of directors may decide to eliminate or reduce any
dividends paid on our common stock. Any reduction or elimination of dividends could cause the market
price of our common stock to decline and could further cause your shares of common stock to become less
liquid, which may result in losses by you.

Even if our board of directors desires to declare and pay dividends, we might not have cash in the future to pay
dividends in the intended amounts or at all.

Our ability to pay dividends, and our board of directors’ determination to keep our dividend policy,
will depend on numerous factors, including the following:

o the state of our business, competition and changes in our industry;

o changes in the factors, assumptions and other considerations made by our board of directors in
reviewing and revising our dividend policy;

e our future results of operations, financial condition, liquidity needs and capital resources;

e our various expected cash needs, including cash interest and principal payments on our
indebtedness, capital expenditures, the purchase price of acquisitions, incremental costs associated
with being a public company and taxes; and

+ potential sources of liquidity, including borrowing under our revolving credit facility or possible
asset sales.

Our actual cash available to pay dividends may not equal or exceed the amount necessary to pay
dividends at any time. Over time, our capital and other cash needs will invariably be subject to
uncertainties, which could affect whether we pay dividends and the level of any dividends we may pay in
the future. In addition, to the extent that we would seek to raise additional cash from additional debt
incurrence or equity security issuances, we cannot assure you that such financing will be available on

13



reasonable terms or at all. Each of the factors listed above could negatively affect our ability to pay
dividends in accordance with our dividend policy or at all.

If our estimates relating to dividends payable in the future change, you may not receive the amount of dividends
yout expected.

If our estimates of cash available to pay dividends in the future were to fall below our expectations,
our assumptions as to estimated cash needs were to be too low or if other applicable assumptions were to
prove incorrect, we may need to:

 either reduce or eliminate dividends, which may result in a decline in the market price or liquidity,
or both, of our common stock;

¢ fund dividends by incurring additional debt (to the extent we are permitted to do so under the
agreements governing our debt), which would increase our leverage and limit our funding
alternatives for other uses;

» amend the terms of our credit facilities or the indenture governing our senior discount notes to
permit us to pay dividends or inake other payments if we are otherwise not permitted to do so,
which is likely to require us to incur significant costs;

¢ fund dividends from future issuances of equity securities, which could be dilutive to our
stockholders and negatively affect the market price of our common stock;

s fund dividends from other sources, such as by asset sales or by working capital, which would leave us
with less cash available for other purposes; and

» reduce other expected uses of cash, such as capital expenditures, which could limit our ability to
grow.

Our ability te pay dividends will be restricted by agreements governing our debt, including our credit facilities and
the indenture governing our senior discount notes and by Delaware law.

Our credit facilities and the indenture governing our senior discount notes restrict our ability to pay
dividends. We refer you to “Liquidity and Capital Resources—Long-term Debt and Other Obligations”
under Item 7, where we describe the terms of our indebtedness, including provisions limiting our ability to
declare and pay dividends.

Additionally, under the Delaware General Corporation Law, or DGCL, our board of directors may
not authorize payment of a dividend unless it is either paid out of our surplus, as calculated in accordance
with the DGCL, or if we do not have a surplus, it is paid out of our net profits for the fiscal year in which
the dividend is declared and/or the preceding fiscal year.

If, as a result of these restrictions, we are required to reduce or eliminate the payment of dividends, a
decline in the market price or liquidity, or both, of our common stock could result. This may in turn result
in losses by you.

Our dividend policy may limit our ability to pursue growth opportunities, which may harm our competitive
position and cause the market price of our common stock to decline.

If we continue paying dividends at the level currently anticipated under our dividend policy, we may
not retain a sufficient amount of cash to consummate acquisitions, and may need to seek financing to fund
a material expansion of our business, including any significant acquisitions or to pursue growth
opportunities requiring capital expenditures significantly beyond our current expectations. The risks
relating to funding any dividends, or other cash needs as a result of paying dividends, are summarized in
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the preceding risk factors. If we are unable to take timely ad\:rantage of growth opportunities, our future
financial condition and competitive position may be harmed, which in turn may adversely affect the market
price of our common stock.

Risks Relating to Our Business

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness, which may reduce our cash flow and impede our ability to pay
dividends on our common stock, remain in compliance with debt covenanis, make payments on our indebtedness
and operate our business.

As of December 31, 2006, we had outstanding indebtedness of approximately $364.9 million, which
represented approximately 69% of our total consolidated capitalization on a book basis. As of
December 31, 2006, we also had availability of $53.6 million (net of standby letters of credit of
approximately $6.4 million) under our revolving credit facility.

Our substantial indebtedness could have important consequences. For example, it could:
o make it more difficult for us to comply with the terms of our outstanding debt;

e require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to pay principal and interest on our
debt, thus making it more difficult for us to pay dividends on our common stock;

« make us more vulnerable to, and reduce our flexibility in planning for, changes in general €Conomic,
industry and competitive conditions;

« limit our ability to borrow additional amounts for working capital, capital expenditures,
acquisitions, debt service requirements, execution of our strategy, or other purposes; and

o place us at a disadvantage compared to our competitors with less debt.

Any of the above listed factors could make us more vulnerable to defaults and place us at a
competitive disadvantage, therefore making an investment in our common stock less attractive when
compared to other investments. Further, if we do not have sufficient earnings to service our debt, we would
need to refinance all or part of our existing debt, sell assets, borrow more money or sell securities, none of
which we can guarantee we will be able to do on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

We could incur more indebtedness, which may increase the risks associated with our substantial leverage,
including our ability to service our indebtedness and pay dividends on our common stock.

The indenture governing our senior discount notes and our credit facilitics permit us, under certain
circumstances, to incur a significant amount of additional indebtedness. For example, our credit facilities
allow us to incur up to an additional $80.0 million of incremental term loans under the credit facility,
subject to certain conditions. In addition, we may incur additional indebtedness through our revolving
credit facility. If we incur additional debt, the risks associated with our substantial leverage, including our
ability to service our debt and pay dividends on our common stock, would increase. This, in turn, could
negatively affect the market price of our common stock.

The terms of our credit facilities and the indenture governing our senior discount notes may restrict our curren!
and future operations, particularly our ability to respond to changes in our business or to take certain actions.

Our credit facilities and the indenture governing our senior discount notes contain, and any future
indebtedness of ours would likely contain, a number of financial and other restrictive covenants that
impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us, including restrictions that may limit our ability
to engage in acts that may be in our best long-term interests. For a more complete description of these
covenants and restrictions, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources” under ltem 7.
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The operating and financial restrictions and covenants in our existing and future debt agreements may
adversely affect our ability to finance future operations or capital needs or to engage in other business
activities. A breach of any of the restrictive covenants in our credit facilities could result in a default under
such facilities. If any such default occurs, the lenders may elect to declare all obligations under our credit
facilities to be immediately due and payable, enforce their security interest or require us to apply all of our
available cash to repay these borrowings, any of which would result in an event of default under our senior
discount notes. If the debt under our credit facilities or our senior discount notes were to be accelerated,
our business operations would be interrupted, which would adversely affect the market price of our
common stock.

The seasonal nature of the ice business results in losses and lower margins in the first and fourth guarters of the
year.

We experience significant seasonal fluctuations in our net sales and profitability. We make a
disproportionate amount of our sales in the second and third calendar quarters when the weather is
generally warmer, which results in an increased demand for ice. We also earn our net income during these
same periods. As a result of seasonal revenue declines and the lack of a corresponding decrease in certain
expenses, we experience net losses and materially lower profit margins during the first and fourth calendar
quarters. Variations in demand could have a material adverse effect on the timing of our cash flows and
therefore limit our ability to timely service our obligations with respect to our indebtedness and to pay
dividends. In addition, because our operating results depend significantly on sales during the second and
third calendar quarters, our results of operations may fluctuate significantly if the weather during these
periods is cool or rainy.

Weather conditions and weather events can decrease our sales or increase our expenses.

Cool or rainy weather can decrease sales, while extremely hot weather may increase our expenses,
each resulting in a negative impact on our operating results and cash flow. Ice consumers demand ice for a
variety of reasons, but many of them buy ice in connection with outdoor related activities, both commercial
and recreational. As a result, demand for ice increases during periods of warm, sunny weather, and
conversely, demand decreases during periods of cool, rainy weather. During extended periods of cool or
rainy weather on a national basis, our revenues and resulting net income may substantially decline. Also,
hot weather does not necessarily result in greater net income. During extended periods of hot weather, our
profits and cash flow may decline because of an increase in expenses in response to excess demand. We
may have to transport ice from one plant to another and, in some cases, purchase ice from third party
sources and transport it to a specific market to meet this excess demand, resulting in higher expenses and
inconsistent service and product quality. Finally, although extreme weather events such as hurricanes can
cause an increase in volume sales, those sales are not necessarily profitable due to added costs and
disruptions to our normal service and distribution routes.

Our failure to successfully compete in onr markets, retain existing customers and obtain new customers could
limit our prospects and cause us to lose market share.

Our businesses are highly competitive. We have many competitors in each of our geographic markets
offering similar products and services. Competition in our businesses is based primarily on service, quality
and price. We could lose market share if we fail to successfully compete against our competitors in any of
these areas, if our existing competitors expand their capacity, if new entrants successfully penetrate our
markets, if we fail to adequately serve our existing base of customers, or if our larger grocery or
convenience store customers decide to manufacture their own ice rather than purchase our products.
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Increases in the prices of electricity, certain raw materials, fuel, insurance and other required expenses could, if
we cannot pass those price increases along to our customers, have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

We use substantial amounts of polyethylene, which is the primary raw material used to manufacture
the bags we use to package our ice, electricity in connection with our manufacturing process and fuel to
operate the refrigerated trucks for ice delivery. We also carry general liability, workers’ compensation,
health and vehicle insurance. We have already experienced increases in bag costs, fuel costs, electricity
costs and insurance costs and may experience further increases in such costs in the future. If the prices for
these items or other expenses increase beyond the amounts that we are able to pass along to our
customers, our margins and our operating cash flow would decrease.

Our acquisitions may not be successfully integrated and could cause unexpected financial or operational
difficulties.

In 2005 and 2006, we completed a total of 12 acquisitions. We anticipate that we may, from time to
time, selectively acquire additional businesses, asscts or securities of companies that we believe would
provide a strategic fit with our business. Acquisitions are also accompanied by risks, such as potential
exposure to unknown liabilities of acquired companies and the possible loss of key employees and
customers of the acquired business. Further, acquisitions are subject to risks associated with the difficulty
and expense of integrating the operations and personnel of the acquired companies, the potential
disruption to our business and the diversion of management time and attention, any of which could
increase the costs of operating our business, negate the expected benefits of the acquisitions or result in
the loss of customers.

We could incur substantial costs as a result of violations of or liabilities under environmental laws.

Our operations are subject to a wide range of environmental laws and regulations governing, among
other things, air emissions, wastewater discharges, the use, management and disposal of hazardous and
non-hazardous materials and wastes and the cleanup of contamination. Noncompliance with such laws and
regulations, or incidents resulting in environmental releases, could cause us to incur substantial costs,
including cleanup costs, fines and penalties, third party claims for personal injury, investments to retrofit or
upgrade our facilities and programs, or curtailment of our operations. For example, our ice manufacturing
and cold storage operations use refrigerants such as ammonia and Freon. Some of our facilities may not be
in compliance with certain Freon refrigerant requirements, such as leak detection and repair,
recordkeeping or reporting. In addition, the market price of Freon is rising as a result of phase-outs under
federal laws, which could significantly increase our operating costs in the future if we are not able to obtain
approved substitutes. From time to time, our use of ammonia has resulted in releases that have
temporarily disrupted our manufacturing operations and resulted in lawsuits or administrative penalties.

Material violations of, or liabilities under, environmental laws may require us to incur substantial costs
which could reduce our margins, or to divert resources from ongoing environmental programs and
improvements, which could delay our efforts to integrate acquisitions and upgrade our operations, or
expose us to risk of further environmental liability.

Our business could be disrupted or we could incur substantial costs because of government laws and regulations.

We are subject to various federal, state and local laws relating to many aspects of our business,
including labeling, sanitation, health and safety and manufacturing processes. We cannot predict the types
of government regulations that may be enacted in the future by the various levels of government or how
existing or future Jaws or regulations will be interpreted or enforced. The enactment of more stringent laws
or regulations or a stricter interpretation of existing laws and regulations may cause a disruption in our
operations or require additional expenditures by us, some of which could be material. We may incur
material costs and liabilities in order to comply with any such laws and regulations and such costs and
liabilities may result in substantial expenses to us and could divert management’s time and attention.
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If we are unable to retain senior executives and attract and retain other qualified employees, our business might be
adversely affected.

Our success depends in part on our ability to attract, hire, train and retain qualified managerial, sales
and marketing personnel. Competition for these types of personnel is high. We may be unsuccessful in
attracting and retaining the personnel we require to conduct our operations successfully. Qur success also
depends to a significant extent on the continued service and performance of our senior management team
and in particular on the continued service of Messrs. William P. Brick and Jimmy C. Weaver. Mr. Brick
currently serves as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Weaver currently serves as our
President and Chief Operating Officer. In addition, we do not carry “key man” life insurance. Qur inability
to successfully attract and retain persennel or the loss of any member of our senior management team
could impair our ability to execute our business plan.

Accidents involving our products and equipment could expose us to increased costs as a result of product liability
claims.

We are subject to a risk of product liability claims and adverse publicity if a consumer is or claims to
be harmed while using our products or equipment. Any such claim may result in negative publicity, loss of
revenues or higher costs associated with litigation:

We currently carry product liability insurance. However, this insurance may be insufficient to pay for
all or a large part of these losses. If our insurance does not adequately cover these losses, our results of
operations and cash flow would decrease and such a decrease could be material.

We may lose customers’ business to competitors as a result of our limited intellectual property protection,
including on The Ice Factory®.

As the sole major ice supplier using an on-site production and delivery system at our customers’ retail
locations, we have enjoyed a competitive advantage over our competitors. Qur proprietary Ice Factory
system is preferred by certain of our high volume customers to traditional ice delivery and gives us more
flexibility during peak seasons. Competitors sometimes test machines similar to The Ice Factory. If any of
our competitors are successful with the rollout of a competing system, we could lose business to these
companies, which would result in decrcased cash flows and results of operations.

It is also our practice to protect certain of our proprietary materials and processes by relying on trade
secrets laws and non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements. Confidentiality or trade secrets may not be
maintained and others may independently develop or obtain access to such materials or processes, which
could adversely affect our competitive position and ability to differentiate our products and services from
our competitors’ offerings.

Limitations on our ability to utilize our tax assets before they expire may negatively affect financial results and the
ability to pay dividends.

As of December 31, 2006, we had net operating loss carryforwards for U.S. federal income tax
purposes of approximately $105 miltion, of which approximately $64 million were generated prior to
August 15, 2003, There are annual limitations on the utilization of the $64 million portion of the net
operating loss carryforwards due to changes in ownership on and prior to August 15, 2003. Further, since
at the closing of our initial public offering on August 12, 2005 our prior equity investors ceased to own a
majority of our common stock, new limitations apply to the approximately $41 million of net operating toss
carryforwards that were generated from August 15, 2003 to August 12, 2005 and additional limitations
apply to the net operating loss carryforwards generated prior to August 15, 2003.

If we are not able to utilize our tax assets in the manner or in the timeframe we anticipate, our future
after-tax cash flow available for payment of dividends on our common stock will be reduced.
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Any significant reduction in goodwill and other intangible assets would have an adverse effect on the value of our
business.

Our acquisitions have resulted in significant amounts of goodwilt and other intangible assets.
Goodwill, which relates to the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets of the businesses acquired,
and intangible assets totaled approximately $296.3 million at December 31, 2006, representing
approximately 49% of our total assets. In the future, goodwill and intangible assets may increase as a result
of future acquisitions. Goodwill and intangible assets are reviewed at least annually for impairment.
Impairment may result from, among other things, deterioration in the performance of acquired businesses,
adverse market conditions, adverse changes in applicable laws or regulations, including changes that
restrict the activities of the acquired business, and a variety of other circumstances. During 2006, we
recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $3.3 million to goodwill in the bottled water portion of our non-
ice products and operations business segment as a result of a significant reduction in bottled water sales
volumes related to a particular customer. During 2005, we recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $5.7
million to goodwill in the cold storage portion of our non-ice products and operations business segment as
a result of a significant reduction in cold storage sales volumes related to a particular customer. The
amount of these and any future impairments must be charged to earnings. Any future determination
requiring the write-off of a significant portion of the goodwill and intangible assets recorded on our
balance sheet would have an adverse effect on the value of our business.

Risks Relating to OQur Common Stock
The market for our common stock may be volatile, which could cause the value of your investment to decrease.

Volatility in the market price of our common stock may prevent you from being able to sell our
common stock held by you at or above the price you paid for it. The market price of our common stock
may fluctuate widely as a result of various factors, such as period-to-period fluctuations in our actual or
anticipated operating results, sales of our common stock by our existing equity investors, failure to pay
dividends at anticipated levels, developments in our industry, the failure of securities analysts to cover our
common stock or changes in financial estimates by analysts, failure to meet financial estimates by analysts,
competitive factors, general economic and securities market conditions and other external factors, Also,
securities markets worldwide experience significant price and volume fluctuations. This market volatility,
as well as general economic or market conditions, and market conditions affecting the stock of companies
in our industry in particular, could reduce the market price of our common stock in spite of our operating
performance.

Limited trading volume of our common stock may contribute to its price volatility.

For the year ended 2006, the average daily trading volume for our common stock as reported by the
New York Stock Exchange was approximately 118,000 shares. As a result, relatively small trades may have
a significant impact on the price of our common stock.

If our share price is volatile, we may be the target of securities litigation, which is costly and time-consuming to
defend.

In the past, following periods of market volatility in the price of a company’s securities, security
holders have often instituted class action litigation. If the market value of our common stock experiences
adverse fluctuations and we become involved in this type of litigation, regardless of the outcome, we could
incur substantial legal costs and our management’s attention could be diverted from the operation of our
business, causing our business to suffer.
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We are a holding company with no operations, and unless we receive dividends, distributions, advances, transfers
of funds or other payments from our subsidiary, we will be unable to pay dividends on our common stock and
meet our debt service and other obligations.

We are a holding company and conduct all of our operations through our subsidiary. We do not have,
apart from our ownership of our subsidiary, any independent operations. As a result, we will rely on
dividends and other payments or distributions from our subsidiary to pay dividends on our common stock
and meet our debt service and other obligations. The ability of our subsidiary to pay dividends or make
other payments or distributions to us will depend on our operating results and may be restricted by, among
other things, the covenants that are contained in our credit facilities and the covenants of any future
outstanding indebtedness we or our subsidiary may incur.

In addition, because we are a holding company, claims by our stockholders will be structurally
subordinated to all existing and future liabilities and obligations (whether or not for borrowed money) of
our subsidiary, including obligations under our new credit facilities. Therefore, in the event of our
bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization, our assets and those of our subsidiary will be able to satisfy the
claims of our stockholders only after all of our and our subsidiary's liabilities and obligations have been
paid in full.

Provisions of our charter documents and the DGCL may inhibit a takeover, which could negatively affect our
stock price.

Provisions of our charter documents and the DGCL, the state in which we are incorporated, could
discourage potential acquisition proposals or make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of
our company, even if doing so might be beneficial to our stockholders. Our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation and by-laws provide for various procedural and other requirements that could
make it more difficult for stockholders to effect certain corporate actions. For example, our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation authorizes our board of directors to determine the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions of unissued series of preferred stock without any vote or action by our
stockholders. Our board of directors could therefore authorize and issue shares of preferred stock with
voting or conversion rights that could dilute the voting power or diminish other rights of holders of our
common stock. Additional provisions are included in our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and by-laws which could make it more difficult for stockholders to effect certain corporate
actions, including:

» the sole power of a majority of the board of directors to fix the number of directors and to fill any
vacancy on the board of directors;

 requirements for advance notification of stockholder nominations and proposals; and

* the inability of stockholders to act by written consent and restrictions on the ability of stockholders
to call special meetings.

These provisions may discourage acquisition proposals and may make it more difficult or expensive
for a third party to acquire a majority of our outstanding voting stock or may delay, prevent or deter a
merget, acquisition, tender offer or proxy contest, which may negatively affect our stock price.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

ITEM 2. Properties

We maintain our principal executive offices in Dallas, Texas, where we lease approximately 20,129
square feet of space. The lease in Dallas expires in 2015. At March 9, 2007, we owned or leased 63 ice
manufacturing plants, 59 distribution centers, five refrigerated warehouses and one bottled water plant, As
of March 9, 2007, we lcased 14 of our ice manufacturing plants and 18 of our distribution centers. The
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leases are scheduled to expire at various dates from 2007 to 2016. Including an installed base of
approximately 3,000 Ice Factories, we had a combined, rated ice manufacturing capacity of approximately
17,000 tons per day. We believe that our current physical properties, along with our planned capital
expenditures, are adequate for us to execute our current business strategy.

Certain manufacturing and distribution facilities may be permanently closed in conjunction with our
continuing consolidation plans, while others may be closed on a seasonal basis depending upon production
requirements. As of March 9, 2007, we have two properties that are being marketed for disposition. These
properties are excluded from the table below.

The following is a list of our active facilities and total rated traditional ice manufacturing capacity as
of March 9, 2007

Traditional
Manufacturing

No. of No. of No. of Capacity

Manufacturing  Distribution  Refrigerated Bottled {Rated Tons

Facilities Centers Warehouses Water Plant Per Day){1)
Alabama............... 4 4 — 1 790
Arizona................ 5 3 — — 1,094
Arkansas............... 1 3 — — 240
Califonia.............. 1 — — —_— 80
Colorado............... 1 —_ 1 — 320
Florida................. 10 5 — — 2,017
Georgia................ 5 2 — — 1,380
Louisiana .............. 3 5 -_— —_ 720
Maryland. .............. 1 2 — — 240
Mississippi ....ovvunnnn — 2 — — —
Missouri ............... 1 — — — 180
Nevada ................ 1 —_ 1 —_ 260
New Mexico............ 1 3 -— — 160
North Carolina ......... 4 —_ 1 — 1,105
Oklahoma.............. 4 4 — — 567
South Carolina.......... 4 2 — — 860
Tennessee.......c...... 2 — —_ — 408
Texas .......ccovvnnn.. 10 19 — —_ 2,740
Utah..........ccvenntn 1 — —_— — 140
Virginia................ 3 5 2 — 880
West Virginia........... 1 o —- = 120
Total ................ 63 59 5 1 14,301

(1) Does not include the rated ice manufacturing capacity of our installed Ice Factories, which was
approximately 3,000 tons per day in the aggregate as of March 9, 2007.
ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various claims, lawsuits and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business.
There are uncertainties inherent in the ultimate outcome of such matters and it is difficult to determine
the ultimate costs that we may incur. We believe the resolution of such uncertainties and the incurrence of
such costs will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the quarter ended December 31, 2006, no matters were submitted to a vote of security holders.
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PART II

ITEM S, Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

Our common stock was listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “FRZ” on
August 10, 2005. Prior to that time, there was no public market for our common stock. The following table
presents the high and low sales prices for the common stock on the New York Stock Exchange during the
periods indicated and the dividends declared during such periods:

Cash
NYSE dividends
Market Price declared
High Low per share
2005
Third quarter (commencing August 10,2005).......................... $22.45 $19.00 $0.20788
Fourth quarter.............iuniiiii i i eanae, $22.76 $20.25 $0.38250
2006
Firstquarter... ... ... oot it e e e $2350 $19.50 $0.38250
Second qUATET. ... ou ittt e $2438 $19.30  $0.40000
Third qUarter . ... ... i e $24.75  $20.11  $0.40000
Fourthquarter. ... ... ... .. i $27.45 $2230 $0.40000
2007
First Quarter (through March 9,2007) ... ......... ... iiiiiina, $27.90 $24.61 —

(1) See “Dividend Policy” below for additional information regarding dividends.

As of March 9, 2007 there were approximately 110 registered holders of record of our common stock
and 21,809,395 shares of our common stock outstanding. Because many of our shares of common stock are
held by brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are unable to estimate the total
number of stockholders represented by these record holders.

Dividend Policy

Since the completion of our IPC, our board of directors has declared dividends on our commeon stock
as follows:

Dividend Dividend Total

Dectaration Date Record Date Payable Date Per share Dividend

August11,2005................. September 30, 2005  October 17,2005  $0.20788  $4.5 million
December 15,2005 .............. December 30, 2005  Janvary 17,2006 $0.38250 §$8.3 million
March15,2006.................. March 31, 2006 April 17,2006 $0.38250 $8.3 million
June 15,2006 ................... June 30, 2006 July 17,2006 $0.40000 $8.7 million
September 15,2006.............. September 29, 2006  October 16,2006  $0.40000 $8.8 million
December 15,2006 .............. December 29, 2006  January 16, 2007 $0.40000 $8.8 million

As previously announced, we intend to continue paying quarterly dividends at an annual rate of $1.60
per share on our common stock outstanding, subject to the Board’s decision to declare these dividends and
various restrictions on our ability to do so. The Board will evaluate whether to pay a dividend on a
quarterly basis and will base its decisions on, among other things, our results of operations, cash
requirements, financial condition, contractual restrictions and other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The amounts available to us to pay further cash dividends are restricted by our credit facilities and the
indenture governing our outstanding senior discount notes. For additional information about the
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restrictions on our ability to pay future dividends, see “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Long-term Debt and
Other Obligations.”

Equity Compensation Plans

Information concerning securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is set
forth in “Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters.”

Sales of Unregistered Securities

The following information relates to the sales and other issuances of our securities within the past
three fiscal years, none of which were registered pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933 as amended (the
“Securities Act”).

On August 16, 2004, we sold 17,250 shares of common stock and 125 shares of our Series A preferred
stock to one of our independent directors. The shares were sold for cash proceeds equal to $7.25 per
common share and $1,000 per preferred share or an aggregate of $250,000. These shares were issued
without registration under the Securities Act by reason of the exemption from registration afforded by the
provisions of Section 4(2) thereof, as a transaction by an issuer not involving any public offering.

On October 27, 2004, we sold $151,000,000 aggregate principal amount at maturity of our 1012%
Senior Discount Notes due 2012 (the “senior discount notes”). We received gross proceeds of
approximately $100.2 million upon the issuance of the senior discount notes.

The initial purchasers of the senior discount notes and the principal amount purchased by each such
purchaser are listed in the table below:

Principal Amount
Name of Purchaser at Maturity
Credit Suisse First Boston LLC ... ..ottt aae i et eeaearaaes $ 60,400,000
Bear, Stearns & Co. INC. ...ttt it e ettt i $ 45,300,000
CIBC World Markets COTp. . .....vutirii ittt ittt v i nenaans $ 45,300,000
02 R $151,000,000

The issuance of the senior discount notes to the initial purchasers was made in reliance on
Section 4(2) under the Securities Act and the senior discount notes were subsequently resold by the initial
purchasers pursuant to Rule 144A and Regulation S thereunder. The sale of the senior discount notes was
made without general solicitation or advertising.
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Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securities

On August 9, 2005, we registered 11,730,000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate offering
price of $217,005,000 in our initial public offering. On August 12, 2005 we closed the sale by us and the
selling stockholders of a total of 11,730,000 shares of our common stock in our initial common stock
offering at a price of $18.50 per share in a firm commitment underwritten initial public offering. Of the
shares sold in the offering, 6,911,765 shares were sold by us and the remaining 4,818,235 shares were sold
by the selling stockholders. This offering was effected pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form §-1
(File No. 333-122751), which the SEC declared effective on August 9, 2005. Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc.,
Lehman Brothers Inc., Credit Suisse First Boston LLC, Goldman, Sachs & Co. and CIBC World Markets
Corp. served as lead underwriters in the offering. The gross proceeds of the offering were allocated as
follows:

» approximately $89.1 million was received by the selling stockholders; and
¢ we received the remaining $127.9 million.

The proceeds of the offering received by us, together with $256.0 million in borrowings under our
credit facilities, were used as follows:

¢ approximately $9.0 million was paid to the underwriters in connection with the underwriting
discount;

¢ approximately $11.0 million was used in connection with offering expenses, printing fees, listing
fees, filing fees, accounting fees and legal fees in connection with the offering and with the related
transactions;

» approximately $184.5 million was used in connection with the repayment of our previous credit
facilities;

e approximately $169.8 million was used to repurchase the our senior subordinated notes; and
 approximately $9.6 million was retained by Reddy Holdings as additional cash in hand.

On August 26, 2005, we paid $0.4 million to purchase and retire senior discount notes with an
aggregate principal amount at maturity of $0.5 million. On February 28, 2006, 186,261 shares of previously
issued restricted stock issued to certain members of management and independent directors vested
according to their terms. We withheld 51,256 of such shares on that date in satisfaction of statutory federal
and state tax withholding obligations on behalf of employees whose restricted stock vested on that date and
used $1.0 million of the retained proceeds of our initial public offering to fund these withholding
obligations. The withheld shares were assigned a value equal to the closing price on February 28, 2006. The
members of management received no cash proceeds from the repurchases.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth, for the periods and dates indicated, selected consolidated data derived
from our consolidated financial statements. The following information should be read in conjunction with
our consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto, and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” appearing elsewhere in this report.

On August 15, 2003, Packaged lce, Inc. merged with Cube Acquisition Corp., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. Packaged Ice, which was renamed Reddy Ice Group, Inc. (“Reddy
Group™), was the surviving corporation and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Reddy Holdings, which
was established on May 8, 2003. Reddy Holdings and Cube Acquisition conducted no operations from
May 8, 2003 to August 14, 2003. Reddy Holdings and Reddy Group are collectively referred to as the
“Successor.” Packaged Ice prior to the merger is referred to as the “Predecessor.” Because of purchase
accounting, certain amounts may not be comparable between the Predecessor and Successor. On
January 1, 2007, Reddy Group merged with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Reddy Ice Corporation (“Reddy
Corp.”), with Reddy Corp. being the surviving entity.

Successor Successor Predecessor Combined Predecessor
May 8, 2003
(Date of Twelve
Inception) to  January 1to Months Ended  Year Ended
Year Ended December 31, December 31, August 14,  December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2003 2003({1) 2002
(in thousands, except per share amounis)
Operating Data:
Revenues ..............oouiiinn. $346,038 $319.772 $285727  $86,919 $151,269 $238,188 $235,660
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation) ... 212,851 186,223 173,066 52,732 91,642 144,374 144,852
Depreciation expense related to cost of
SAlES. L. 19,517 18,338 17,850 5,883 10,881 16,764 18,567
Grossprofit.. .. ...... ...l 113,670 104,711 94,811 28,304 48,746 77,050 72,241
Operatingexpenses. .. ............... 49,978 42,030 36,928 13,430 18,598 32,028 33,739
Depreciation and amortization expense . . 5,879 5,691 5,335 1,733 3,647 5,380 6,137
Loss (gain) on disposition of assets, ., . .. 1,107 1,848 398 — (11 (1) 4,345
Impairment of assets. . ............... 3,718 5,725 — -— — —_ 7,363
Management agreement termination fees
and transaction bonuses and expenses . — 6,171 — — — — —
Otherincome, net. . ......oovnvennans — — — — 116 116 161
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt . .. — 28,189 — — — — {2,494)
Interestexpense . ................... 29,624 34,421 25,105 10,370 21,063 31,433 34,870
Interestincome. . ...... ... ... ... 869 — —_ — — — -
Income tax benefit (expense) . ......... (9,572) 7,248  (10,494) (1,053) — (1,053) —
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle .. ... ool i — — — — — — 73,230
Netincome (1088} ... ....cvnvnnenenn.. § 14661 $(2116) § 16551 § 1,718 § 5565 7,283 (84,788)
Net income (loss} available to common
stockholders ..............c0viun, $ 14661 $(12,116) § 5968 $(2,713) $ 2,999 $ 286 $ (88,598
Basic net income {loss) per share:
Net income (loss) available to common
stockholders before cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle ... $ 068 § (0.72) S 044 § (035) § 015 $ (0.76)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle .. ........... — — — — —_ (3.64)
Net income (loss) available to common
stockholders ................... $ 068 $§ (0.7)$ 044 § (035) §$ 015 $ (440
Weighted average common shares
outstanding . . .................. 21,405 16,760 13,675 7,858 20,159 _ 20,157
Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Net income (loss) available to common
stockholders before cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle ... $ 068 $ (072)% 044 § (035 § 014 $ (0.76)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting prineiple ............. — — — — — (3.64)
Net income (loss) available to common
stockholders ................... $ 068 $ (0.72)$ 044 § (035) § 014 $ (440
Weighted average common shares
outstanding . . ....... ..o 21,716 16,760 13,703 7,858 20,808 20,157
Cash dividends declared per common
share(2). . ..ov ittt $ 158 3% 059 % 076 § — $ — M —
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Successor Successor Predecessor Combined Predecessor

May 8, 2003
{Date of Twelve
Inception) to  Januvary 1 to Months Ended Year Ended
Year Ended December 31, December 31, August 14, December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2003 2003(1) 2002

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Balance Sheet Data:
Total cash and cash equivalents and

restrictedcash. . ................. $ 39434 § 33997 § 4478 3§ 12,801 6,500
Working cap1tal(3) ................. 39,323 33,083 2,208 7,651 (6,079)
Total assets . e, 010,272 603,764 588,620 614,336 347,573
Totaldebt........................ 364,895 352960 437,066 330,947 305,214
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock — — — — 40,992
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) ..... 167,648 183,183 82,933 191,318 (37,149)

Other Financial Data:
Net cash provided by (u%ed m)

Cash flows—operating activities . . .. . $ 70,265 $ 55587 § 47,786 3 30,092 § (4,846 $ 25246 $ 32,690
Cash flows—investing activities. . . . . . 29,534; (20,551) 30,205; (206,128) 6,612 (212,740) 11,595
Cash flows—financing activities . .. .. 35,294 (5,517) (25,904 188,837 11,664 200,501 24,808
Capital expenditures(4) ............. 13,582) (19,265) {15,988) (3,252) {7,848} (11,100) 14,403
Proceeds from dispositions. . ... ... .. 1,967 2,108 2,657 311 1,236 1,547 3,378

(1) Represents the sum of the Successor’s results for the period from May 8, 2003 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 2003 and
the Predecessor’s results from January 1, 2003 to August 14, 2603. The Successor conducted no operations from May &, 2003 to
August 14, 2003.

{2) All dividends declared in the year ended December 31, 2005 were paid after August 12, 2005, the clesing date of the initial
public offering of our common stock.

(3) Working capital is defined as current assets less current liabilities.

(4) Excludes the costs of acquisitions and purchases of leased assets.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the “Item 6. Selected Financial Data,” and
our consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto beginning on page F-1, and the other
information appearing elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are the largest manufacturer and distributor of packaged ice in the United States and currently
serve approximately 82,000 customer locations in 31 states and the District of Columbia. We operate in
two business segments—ice products and non-ice products and operations. Ice products accounted for
approximately 96%, 95% and 94% of revenues in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our ice products
business segment consists of:

e the traditional manufacture and delivery of ice from a central point of production to the point of
sale; and

e the installation and operation of The Ice Factory, our proprietary equipment located in our
customers’ high volume locations that produces, packages and stores ice through an automated,
self contained system.

Qur other business segment, non-ice products and operations, consists of refrigerated warehousing for
third parties and the manufacture and sale of bottled water.

Seasonality. Our results of operations are highly seasonal, characterized by peak demand during the
warmer months of May through September, with an extended peak selling season in the southern United
States. As a result of this seasonality and the fixed costs in our business, the proportion of revenues earned
in our ice and non-ice business segments and the ratio of costs to revenues in any given quarter are not
necessarily indicative of the ratios for a full year. Revenues within specific markets can also be affected by
weather conditions, with cool or rainy weather negatively impacting demand and extremely hot weather
increasing our costs as we respond to cxcess customer demand for our products. Approximately 69%, 69%
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and 68% of our revenues occurred during the second and third calendar quarters in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, As a result of seasonal revenue declines and a less than proportional decline in certain
expenses during the first and fourth calendar quarters, we typically experience lower profit margins
resulting in losses during these periods. In addition, because a significant portion of our annual sales are
generated during the second and third calendar quarters, our annual results of operations may fluctuate
significantly if the weather during these periods is cool or rainy. Cool and rainy weather has a negative
impact on operations, while warm and dry weather generally has a positive impact. For additional
information concerning the impact of seasonality on our results of operations, see “—General Economic
Trends and Seasonality.”

Revenues. Our revenues primarily represent sales of packaged ice, packaged ice bags for use in our
Ice Factory equipment, bottled water and cold storage services. There is no right of return with respect to
these products or services. A portion of our revenues also represents fees earned under management
agreements for Ice Factories located outside our primary territories that are recognized as earnings under
contract terms.

Cost of Sales (Excluding Depreciation). Our cost of sales (excluding depreciation) consists of costs
related to the manufacture and distribution of our products, including, in particular:

» manufacturing and distribution labor costs;
* raw materials (primarily of polyethylene-based plastic bags);

e product delivery expenses, including fuel and vehicle rental expense related to products delivered
by our own distribution network, as well as fees paid to distributors who deliver ice to our
customers on our behalf;

s utility expenses (primarily electricity used in connection with the manufacturing, storage and
distribution processes); and

e Ice Factory-related costs associated with customer service representatives and machine
technicians (note, however, that Ice Factories generally do not increase our plant occupancy,
delivery or utility costs).

Depreciation Expense Related to Cost of Sales and Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and
amortization are divided into two line items—depreciation expense related to cost of sales and
depreciation and amortization expense. Depreciation expense related to cost of sales consists of
depreciation expense for our production and distribution equipment. Depreciation and amortization
expense consists of depreciation and amortization expense for our selling, general and administrative
functions.

Operating Expenses. Our operating expenses are costs associated with selling, general and
administrative functions. These costs include executive officers’ compensation, office and administrative
salaries, insurance, legal and other professional services and costs associated with leasing office space.
Labor costs, including associated payroll taxes and benefit costs, but excluding non-cash stock-based
compensation expense, included in operating expenses represented approximately 8% and 7% of sales in
2006 and 2003, respectively.

Facilities. At March 9, 2007, we owned or operated 63 ice manufacturing facilities, 59 distribution
centers, approximately 79,000 merchandisers (cold storage units installed at customer locations),
approximately 3,000 Ice Factories, five refrigerated warehouses and one bottled water plant. As of the
same date, we had an aggregate daily ice manufacturing capacity of approximately 17,000 tons.
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Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Year Ended Change from
December 31, Previous Year
2006 2005 Dollars %

(dollars in thousands)
Consolidated Results:

Revenues. .........ooovvnenn.. e $346,038 $319772  § 26,266 8.2
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation)................ 212,851 196,223 16,628 8.5
Depreciation expense related to cost of sales ......... 19,517 18,838 679 3.6
Grossprofit. . ... 113,670 104,711 8,959 8.6
Operating eXpenses. . . ....vvueeerinneneearieeenrenas 49978 42,030 7,948 18.9
Depreciation and amortization expense . . ............ 5879 5,691 188 33
Loss on dispositionof assets ........................ 1,107 1,848 (741)  (40.1)
Impairment of assets. ........coovviiiiiiiiiiiiien 3,718 5,725 (2,007) (35.1)
Management agreement termination fees and '

transaction bonuses and expenses . ................ — 6,171 (6,171) (100.0)
Income fromoperations. ............ocoveervnnen. 52,938 43,246 9,742 22.5
Loss on extinguishmentof debt ..................... — 28,189 (28,189) (100.0)
Interest eXpense, Net. . ..oovvin e vrieaneenneannss 28,755 34,421 (5,666) (16.5)
Income (loss) before income taxes................... 24,233 {19,364) 43,597 2251
Income tax (expense) benefit ....................... (9,572) 7,248 (16,820) (232.1)
Net income (1088). . .. ...coiiivivn i, $ 14,661 $(12,116) §$ 26,777 221.0
Ice Operations:
LT U $333,458 $304,755 § 28,703 9.4
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation). ............... 204,577 186,668 17,909 9.6
Depreciation expense related to cost of sales ......... 18,520 17,769 751 4.2
Grossprofit. ............ e 110,361 100,318 10,043 10.0
Operating expenses. .. .........o e iinnninnn.. 48,204 40,172 8,032 200
Non-Ice Operations:
Revenues. ..........ooiiiiiiii it $ 12,580 $ 15017 $ (2437) (16.2)
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation). ............... 8,274 9,555 (1,281) (134)
Depreciation expense related to cost of sales ......... 997 1,069 (72) (6.7)
Grossprofit. .. ... 3,309 4,393 (1,088 (24.7)
Operating eXpenses. ... .c.ovvvnee e rurearinennenn. 1,774 1,858 (84) {4.5)

Revenues: Revenues increased $26.3 million from 2005 to 2006. This increase was primarily due to an
increase in volume sales, primarily in the second quarter of 2006 as a result of favorable weather conditions
in most of our markets, and the effects of package sizing initiatives, which consisted primarily of converting
a portion of our ice sales from seven to ten pound bags. Also contributing to the increase was higher
average pricing and the effects of the acquisitions of ice companies (approximately $4.4 million). Partially
offsetting these increases in revenues was a $2.4 million decrease in non-ice revenue, primarily due to
volume decreases in our bottled water business related to the loss of its largest customer.

Cost of Sales (Excluding Depreciation): Cost of sales (excluding depreciation} increased $16.6 million
from 2005 to 2006. This increase in cost of sales (excluding depreciation) was primarily due to the
increased volume sales referred to above, approximately $2.9 million of additional costs associated with
acquired ice operations, a $6.0 million increase in fuel, plastic bags and electricity costs due to market
increases in energy prices and a $3.0 million increase in third party distribution costs related to increased
volume sales and rate increases. Partially offsetting these increases was a $1.3 million reduction of costs in
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our non-ice operations, primarily labor costs in our bottled water operation related to decreased sales
volumes.

Labor costs, including associated payroll taxes and benefit costs (including health insurance),
accounted for approximately 23% and 24% of revenues in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Cost of plastic bags
represented approximately 7% of revenues in 2006 and 2005. Fuel expenses represented approximately 4%
and 3% of revenues in 2006 and 2005. Expenses for independent third party distribution services
represented approximately 6% of revenues in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Electricity expense represented
approximately 6% and 5% of revenues in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Depreciation Expense Related to Cost of Sales: Depreciation expense related to cost of sales increased
$0.7 million from 2003 to 2006 as a result of additional depreciation expense associated with new
production and distribution equipment placed in service during 2006 and assets acquired through the
acquisition of ice companies throughout 2006, partiaily offset by the effect of asset dispositions.

Operating Expenses: Operating expenses increased $7.9 million from 2005 to 2006. The increase is
primarily due to $2.3 million of increased incentive compensation, increased non-cash stock-based
compensation of $2.3 million, additional labor costs related to wage increases and acquisitions of $0.8
million and a $1.8 million increase in professional services. Professional services include $1.2 million of
costs related to the secondary stock offering completed in May 2006 and a potential acquisition that was
not completed in the first quarter of 2006, as well as approximately $0.5 million of costs related to the
implementation of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requirements related to internal controls.

Depreciation and Amortization: Depreciation and amortization increased $0.2 million from 2005 to
2006. This increase was primarily due to additional amortization expense associated with the intangible
assets recorded in connection with the acquisitions completed in 2006.

Impairment of Assets: Due to the significant reduction in bottled water sales volumes related to the
loss of a particular customer, we evaluated the goodwill recorded in the bottled water portion of our non-
ice business segment in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangibles” as of September 30, 2006. As a result of such evaluation, we recorded a
non-cash impairment charge of $3.3 million during the three months ended September 30, 2006, which
resulted in the full write-off of the goodwill associated with our bottled water operation.

We also reviewed two pieces of real estate in our ice business in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment of Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, as a result of a pending sale of one
property and physical damage to another. As a result of this review, we recorded an impairment charge of
$0.4 million in the three months ended June 30, 2006.

Due to a significant reduction in cold storage sales volumes related to a particular customer, we
evaluated the goodwill recorded in the cold storage portion of its non-ice business segrent in accordance
with SFAS No. 142 as of June 30, 2005, As a result of such evaluation, we recorded a non-cash impairment
charge of $5.7 million during the three months ended June 30, 2005, which resulted in the full write-off of
goodwill in our cold storage operations.

Management Agreement Termination Fees and Transaction Bonuses and Expenses: In connection with
our initial public offering and the related transactions in August 2005, we recorded expenses of
$6.2 million. These charges were related to payments to our majority owners to terminate the management
services agreement (approximately $4.0 million), transaction bonuses to certain employees (approximately
$1.8 million) and other fees and expenses (approximately $0.4 million).

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt: In connection with our initial public offering and the related
transactions in August 2005, we redeemed substantially all of our 8%% senior subordinated notes pursuant
to a tender offer and consent solicitation and repaid all balances outstanding under our credit facility. We
incurred a loss of $28.1 million in connection with these repayments consisting of the tender premiums and
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consent fees paid to the holders of the 8%% senior subordinated notes (approximately $17.3 million), the
write-off of deferred debt costs and original issue discount related to the 8%4% senior subordinated notes
and the credit facility (approximately $10.6 million) and other fees and expenses (approximately $0.2
million). Additionally, during the three months ended September 30, 2005, we paid $0.4 million to
purchase and retire senior discount notes with an aggregate principal amount at maturity of $0.5 million. A
loss of $0.046 million was recognized in connection with this transaction.

Interest Expense, net: Interest expense, net decreased $5.7 million from 2005 to 2006. This decrease
was primarily due to a $9.0 million reduction in interest expense associated with the 8%4% senior
subordinated notes that were repurchased in August 2005 and a $0.9 million increase in interest income
carned on cash and cash equivalent balances, partially offset by a $3.7 million increase in term loan interest
related to increased principal balances subsequent to the refinancing of our bank credit facility in
August 2005.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Year Ended Change from
December 31, Previous Year
2005 2004 Dollars %

{dollars in thousands)

Consolidated Results:

REVEIIUES. « oot itteeie ettt eereseraannes $319,772 $285,727  § 34,045 11.9
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation)................ 196,223 173,066 23,157 134
Depreciation expense related to cost of sales ......... 18,838 17,850 088 5.5
Grossprofit. ... i e 104,711 94,811 9,900 10.4
Operating eXpenses. .. ....ovvueueiererereenrneanans 42,030 36,928 5,102 13.8
Depreciation and amortization expense............... 5,691 5,335 356 6.7
Loss on dispositionofassets . ....................... 1,848 308 1,450 3643
Impairment of assets............coooviiiiiiias, 5,725 — 5,725 —
Management agreement termination fees and

transaction bonuses and expenses ................. 6,171 — 6,171 —
Income from operations. ..............oooiiiiat 43,246 52,150 (8,904) (17.1)
Loss on extinguishment of debt ..................... 28,189 — 28,189 —_
Interest EXPense. .. vvuveinniiiirererieiasnnearann, 34,421 25,105 9,316 371
Income (loss) before income taxes. .................. (19,364) 27,045 (46,409) (171.6)
Income tax benefit (expense) ....................... 7,248 {10,494) 17,742 169.1
Netincome (1088). ... vovviinin i $(12,116) § 16,551  $(28,667) (173.2)
Ice Operations:
Revenues. ......ocoiviiiiiiiiiii it $304,755 $268,319  $ 36,436 13.6
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation)................ 186,668 162,811 23,857 14.7
Depreciation expense related to cost of sales ......... 17,769 16,769 1,000 6.0
Grossprofit. . ... oo e s 100,318 88,739 11,579 13.0
Operating eXpenses. . ...vvvierireerrireeaanreeenans 40,172 35,040 5,132 14.6
Non-Ice Operations:
|t 111 T $ 15,017 $ 17408 §$ (2391) (13.7)
Cost of sales {excluding depreciation)................ 9,555 10,255 (700) (6.8)
Depreciation expense related to cost of sales ......... 1,069 1,081 {12) (1.1)
Grossprofit. ... ..ot 4,393 6,072 (1,679 (27.7)
Operating eXpenses. . . ... ..vieivneaiainnennnernns 1,858 1,888 {30) (1.6)
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Reventues: Revenues increased $34.0 million from 2004 to 2005. This increase was primarily due to an
increase in volume sales, primarily in the third quarter of 2005, due to more favorable weather in most of
our markets and increased demand resulting from the impact of Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, and the
effects of package sizing initiatives, which consisted primarily of converting a portion of our ice sales from
seven to ten pound bags. Also contributing to the increase was higher average pricing, the effects of the
acquisitions of ice companies (approximately $5.7 million) and changes in terms under which we do
business with the majority of our distributors (approximately $2.6 million). The modifications to our
distributor business occurred mostly in the second quarter of 2004 and resulted in a corresponding increase
in cost of sales (excluding depreciation). Partially offsetting these increases in revenues was a $2.4 million
decrease in non-ice revenue, primarily due to volume decreases in our cold storage business.

Cost of Sales (Excluding Depreciation): Cost of sales (excluding depreciation) increased $23.2 million
from 2004 to 2005. This increase in cost of sales (excluding depreciation) was primarily due to the
increased volume sales referred to above, approximately $4.0 million of additional costs associated with
acquired ice operations, a $2.6 million increase in distribution costs related to changes in terms under
which we do business with the majority of our distributors, and a $5.3 million increase in fuel and plastic
bag costs due to market increases in energy prices. Partially offsetting these increases was a $0.7 million
reduction of costs in our non-ice operations, primarily labor costs in our cold storage operations related to
decreased sales volumes.

Labor costs, including associated payroll taxes and benefit costs (including health insurance),
accounted for approximately 24% and 25% of revenues in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Cost of plastic bags
represented approximately 7% and 6% of revenues in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Fuel expenses
represented approximately 3% of revenues in 2005 and 2004. Expenses for independent third party
distribution services represented approximately 6% and 5% of revenues in 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Electricity expense represented approximately 5% and 6% of revenues in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Depreciation Expense Related to Cost of Sales: Depreciation expense related to cost of sales increased
$1.0 million from 2004 to 2005 as a result of additional depreciation expense associated with new
production and distribution equipment placed in service during 2005 and assets acquired through the
acquisition of ice companies throughout 2004 and 2005, partially offset by the effect of asset dispositions.

Operating Expenses: Operating expenses increased $5.1 million from 2004 to 2005. The increase is
primarily due to $1.8 million of increased incentive compensation, increased non-cash stock-based
compensation of $2.2 million, additional costs related to acquired ice operations of $0.6 million and a
$1.9 million net increase in other costs, primarily insurance and professional services. Offsetting these
increases is a $1.4 million decrease in financing transaction expenses; the issuance of senior discount notes
in the fourth quarter of 2004 resulted in expenses that did not recur in 2003.

Depreciation and Amortization: Depreciation and amortization increased $0.4 million from 2004 to
2005. This increase was primarily due to additional amortization expense associated with the intangible
assets recorded in connection with the acquisitions completed in 2004 and 2005.

Impairment of Assets: Due to the significant reduction in cold storage sales volumes related t0 a
particular customer, we evaluated the goodwill recorded in the cold storage portion of our non-ice business
segment in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangibles” as of June 30, 2005. As a
result of such evaluation, we recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $5.7 million during the three
months ended June 30, 2005.

Management Agreement Termination Fees and Transaction Bonuses and Expenses: In connection with
our initial public offering and the related transactions in August 2005, we recorded expenses of
$6.2 million. These charges were related to payments to our majority owners to terminate the management
services agreement (approximately $4.0 million), transaction bonuses to certain employees (approximately
$1.8 million) and other fees and expenses (approximately $0.4 million).
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Loss on Extinguishment of Debt: In connection with our initial public offering and the related
transactions in August 2005, we redeemed substantially all of our 8%% senior subordinated notes pursuant
to a tender offer and consent solicitation and repaid all balances outstanding under our credit facility. We
incurred a loss of $28.1 million in connection with these repayments consisting of the tender premiums and
consent fees paid to the holders of the 8%% senior subordinated notes (approximately $17.3 million), the
write-off of deferred debt costs and original issue discount related to the 8%4% senior subordinated notes
and the credit facility (approximately $10.6 million) and other fees and expenses (approximately
$0.2 million). Additionally, during the three months ended September 30, 2005, we paid $0.4 million to
purchase and retire senior discount notes with an aggregate principal amount at maturity of $0.5 million. A
loss of $0.046 million was recognized in connection with this transaction.

Interest Expense: Interest expense increased $9.3 million from 2004 to 2005 due to $9.1 million of
non-cash interest expense associated with our senior discount notes issued on October 27, 2004, the effects
of higher interest on our variable rate debt combined with greater outstanding balances under our credit
facilities, offset by the effect of the redemption of substantially all of our 8%% senior subordinated notes
on August 15, 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We intend to fund our ongoing capital and working capital requirements as well as debt service,
including our internal growth and acquisitions, through a combination of cash flows from operations and
borrowings under our credit facilities.

We generate cash from the sale of packaged ice through traditional delivery methods, by which we
manufacture, package and store ice at a central facility and transport it to our customers’ retail locations
when needed, and through Ice Factories, which manufacture, package and store ice in our customers’ retail
locations. Qur primary uses of cash are (a) cost of sales, (b) operating expenses, {c) debt service,

(d) dividends on our common stock, (e) capital expenditures related to replacing and modernizing the
capital equipment in our traditional ice plants and acquiring and installing additional Ice Factories and

(f) acquisitions. Historically, we have financed our capital and working capital requirements, including our
acquisitions, through a combination of cash flows from operations, borrowings under our revolving credit
facilities and operating leases.

Our ability to generate cash from our operations is subject to weather, general economic, financial,
competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control. As a result, we cannot
assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations in amounts sufficient to
enable us to service our debt and to fund our other liquidity needs. If we do not have sufficient liquidity, we
will have to take actions such as reducing or delaying the payment of dividends to our common
stockholders, strategic acquisitions, investments and joint ventures, selling assets, restructuring or
refinancing our debt or seeking additional equity capital. We cannot assure you that any of these remedies
could, if necessary, be effected on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. In addition, the terms of
existing or future debt instruments, including the terms of the credit agreement governing our credit
facilities and the Reddy Holdings indenture, may restrict us from adopting some of these alternatives.

During 2006, capital expenditures totaled $18.6 million. As we have consolidated acquisitions into the
existing company infrastructure, we have identified non-core and excess assets which can be disposed of.
From time to time, we also dispose of other assets which are no longer useful in our operations. As a result
of dispositions of thes¢ non-core and excess assets, we realized proceeds of approximately $2.0 million in
2006. Our net capital expenditures in 2006 were $16.6 million.

In 2006, we completed the acquisition of ten ice companies for a total cash purchase price of
approximately $12.9 mitlion, including direct acquisition costs of $0.3 million. We will continue to evaluate
acquisition opportunities as they become available. In conjunction with these evaluations, we will consider
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our liquidity, availability under our credit facilities, mandatory principal repayments under our debt
agreements and availability of other capital resources.

Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Net cash provided by operating activities was $70.3 million, $55.6 million and $47.8 million in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in cash provided by operations from 2003 to 2006 is due to a
$14.9 million increase in net income, after adjusting for non-cash expenses, offset by a $0.2 million increase
in cash used by changes in working capital. The increase in cash provided by operations from 2004 to 2005
is due to a $5.6 million increase in net income, after adjusting for non-cash expenses, and a $2.2 million
reduction in cash used by changes in working capital.

Net cash used in investing activities was $29.5 million, $20.6 million and $30.2 million in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. Net cash used in investing activities in 2006 was composed of net capital
expenditures of $16.6 million and acquisitions of ice companies totaling $12.9 million. Net cash used in
investing activities in 2005 was composed of net capital expenditures of $17.2 million and acquisitions of
ice companies and leased assets totaling $3.4 million. Net cash used in investing activities in 2004 was
composed of net capital expenditures of $13.3 million and the acquisition of 11 ice companies for
$16.9 million.

Net cash used in financing activities was $35.3 million in 2006, as compared to $5.5 million in 2005,
and cash used in financing activities of $25.9 million in 2004. The use of cash by financing activities in 2006
was a result of the payment of $34.1 million in cash dividends to our common stockholders, $1.0 million for
the repurchase of common stock and $0.2 million used for debt repayment. The use of cash by financing
activities in 2005 was a result of the repayment of outstanding amounts on the revolving credit facility and
other miscellaneous debt during the year of approximately $6.0 million, the payment of $4.5 million in cash
dividends to our common stockholders, offset by a net $5.0 million provided by the initial public offering of
our common stock and other related transactions. The initial public offering and stock option exercises
provided net cash proceeds of $118.0 million and the issuance of the new term loan under our credit
facilities provided $240.0 mitlion. Approximately $353.0 million was spent to retire our 8%% senior
subordinated notes and fund debt issuance costs. The use of cash in 2004 was caused primarily by the
redemption of our preferred stock for $114.2 million and the payment of a common dividend of
$10.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2004, which was partially offset by $100.2 million of cash raised from
the offering of our senior discount notes.

Long-term Debt and Other Obligations

Overview. At December 31, 2006, we had approximately $364.9 million of total debt outstanding as
follows:

e $124.8 million of Reddy Holdings’ 10%:% senior discount notes due 2012 (net of unamortized
discount of $25.7 million);

o $240.0 million of outstanding term loans under our credit facilities which mature on August 12,
2012; and

e $0.1 million of other debt.

Senior Discount Notes. On October 27, 2004, Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. issued $151.0 million in
aggregate principal amount at maturity of 10%% senior discount notes due 2012 in a private placement
offering pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act of 1933. The senior discount
notes were sold at 66.333% of the stated principal amount, which resulted in gross proceeds of
$100.2 million. We used the net proceeds of the offering, together with a dividend of approximately
$28.4 million from our subsidiary to redeem all of our existing series A preferred stock for approximately
$99.2 million, to pay accumulated dividends on such stock as of the date of redemption in the amount of
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approximately $15.0 million and to pay a dividend of approximately $10.4 million to our common
stockholders. In connection with these transactions, our subsidiary made a special transaction payment of
approximately $1.2 million in the aggregate to certain members of management and certain directors. In
connection with the offering of notes and the related transactions, we amended our credit agreement (see
“—Credit Facilities” below).

Each senior discount note had an initial accreted value of $663.33 per $1,000 principal amount at
maturity. The accreted value of each senior discount note increases from the date of issuance until
November 1, 2008 at a rate of 10%% per annum such that the accreted value will equal the stated principal
amount at maturity on November 1, 2008. Thereafter, cash interest will accrue and be payable semi-
annually at a rate of 10%% per annum. The senior discount notes are unsecured obligations of Reddy
Holdings and are:

» not guaranteed by any of Reddy Holdings’ subsidiaries;
e scnior in right of payment to all of Reddy Holdings’ future subordinated indebtedness;

» equal in right of payment with any of Reddy Holdings’ existing and future unsecured senior
indebtedness;

¢ cffectively subordinated to Reddy Holdings’ existing and future secured debt, inctuding debt under
our credit facilities that is guaranteed by Reddy Holdings

e structurally subordinated to all obligations and preferred equity of Reddy Holdings’ subsidiaries.

The sentor discount notes include customary covenants that restrict, among other things, the ability to
incur additional debt or issue certain preferred stock, pay dividends or redeem, repurchase or retire our
capital stock or subordinated indebtedness, make certain investments, incur liens, enter into arrangements
that restrict dividends from our subsidiaries, merge or sell all or substantially all of the assets or enter into
various transactions with affiliates. Prior to November 1, 2007, we may redeem up to 35% of the principal
amount of the senior discount notes at a redemption price of 110.5% of the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption, with funds raised in equity offerings that are
specified in the indenture governing the senior discount notes. From and after November 1, 2008, we may
redeem any or all of the senior discount notes by paying a redemption premium which is initially 5.25% of
the principal amount at maturity of the notes, and will decline annually to zero commencing on
November 1, 2010. If a change of control occurs on or prior to November 1, 2007, we may, at our option,
redeem all, but not less than all, of the senior discount notes at a redemption price equal to the sum of
(i) the accreted value of the notes as of the redemption date, (ii} a premium equal to 125% of one year’s
coupon payment and (iii) any accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption. If we experience a
change of control and do not elect to make the optional redemption described in the previous sentence, we
will be required to make an offer to repurchase the senior discount notes at a price equal to 101% of their
accreted value, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase. We may also be required
to make an offer to purchase the senior discount notes with proceeds of asset sales that are not reinvested
in our business or used to repay other indebtedness. We registered the senior discount notes with the SEC
pursuant to a registration statement that was declared effective on August 26, 2005. Prior to that date, we
accrued additional interest pursuant to a registration rights agreement entered into at the time the senior
discount notes were issued. See Note 8 to our audited financial statements included vnder Item 8 for
additional information.

The indenture governing our senior discount notes restricts the amount of dividends, distributions and
other restricted payments we may pay. Under the indenture, we are restricted from paying dividends on
our common stock unless, at the time of such payment:

¢ no default or event of default has occurred and is continning or would occur as a consequence
thereof;
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e the consolidated coverage ratio set forth in the indenture governing our senior discount notes
exceeds 2.0 to 1.0; and

e there is sufficient capacity under the buildup amount under the indenture governing our senior
discount notes.

The consolidated coverage ratio under the indenture governing our senior discount notes means the
ratio of our EBITDA for the most recent four fiscal quarters to our consolidated interest expense for such
four quarter period. “EBITDA” under the indenture governing our senior discount notes is defined as the
sum of our consolidated net income plus our income tax expense, our interest expense, our depreciation
and amortization expense, unrealized non-cash gains or losses or non-cash charges in respect of hedging
obligations required to be taken under generally accepted accounting principles, unrealized foreign
currency translation gains or losses and all other non-cash charges, except to the extent representing an
accrual or reserve for a future cash expenditure). “Consolidated net income” under the indenture
governing our senior discount notes is defined as nct income of Reddy Holdings and its restricted
subsidiaries: plus or minus cash dividends received on investments or equity in net losses of persons other
than restricted subsidiaries, respectively; provided that the following are not included in consolidated net
income: (i) net income or loss of subsidiaries acquired in pooling of interests transactions for any period
prior to the date of their acquisition, (ii) any net income of a subsidiary restricted in the payment of a
dividend (other than certain permitted restrictions, including those under our existing credit facilities and
our new credit facilities), (iii) gains or losses from non-ordinary course asset sales, (iv) extraordinary gains
or losses, (v) the cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, (vi) non-recurring fees and
expenses and write offs of deferred financing costs related to the financing transactions in connection with
the 2003 merger of Cube Acquisition Corp. and Packaged Ice and, (vii) any fees, charges, costs or cxpenses
relating to our initial public offering and the related transactions and paid in cash, to the extent deducted
in the determination of consolidated net income. “Consolidated interest expense” under the indenture
governing our senior discount notes is defined as total interest expense plus, to the extent not included in
total interest expense, (i) interest expense attributable to capital leases, (ii) amortization of debt discount
and issuance costs, (iii) capitalized interest, (iv) non-cash interest expense, (v) fees on letters of credit,

(vi) net payments pursuant to hedging obligations, (vii) dividends accrued on certain disqualified stock
(viii) interest incurred in connection with investments in discontinued operations, (ix) interest on
guaranteed indebtedness and (x) cash contributions to employee stock ownership plans to the extent they
are used to pay interest or fees on indebtedness incurred by such plans. We are generally required to
calculate our consolidated coverage ratio on a pro forma basis to give effect to incurrences and repayments
of indebtedness as well as acquisitions and dispositions.

The buildup amount equals 50% of our consolidated net income accrued during the period (treated as
one accounting period) from July 1, 2003 to the end of the most recent fiscal quarter for which internal
financial statements are available (or, if such consolidated net income is a deficit, minus 100% of such
deficit), plus, the net cash proceeds of the issuance of capital stock, subject to certain exceptions, and any
cash capital contribution received by us from our stockholders in each case after August 15, 2003 plus the
amount by which our indebtedness is reduced on our balance sheet as a result of the conversion or
exchange of such indebtedness for our capital stock, plus the net reduction in certain restricted investments
made by us, less the amount of certain restricted payments we make from time to time, including, among
other things, the payment of cash dividends.

In addition, regardless of whether we could make any restricted payments under the buildup amount
provision referred to above, we may (1) make dividend payments at any time in an aggregate amount of up
to $15.0 million if no default has occurred and is continuing under the indenture and (2) following our
initial public offering, pay dividends on our capital stock of up to 6.0% per year of the cash proceeds (net
of underwriters’ fees, discounts, commissions or other expenses paid by us) received by us from all such
public equity offerings subject to specified conditions. Accordingly, we are able to pay approximately
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$7.0 million annually in dividends under this 6.0% provision. However, the amount of dividend payments
permitted under this 6.0% provision will correspondingly reduce the amount we would otherwise have
available to us under the buildup amount for restricted payments, including dividends. At December 31,
2006, Reddy Holdings had $8.1 million of cash on hand that was not subject to any restrictions under our
credit facilities and its subsidiary had $31.3 million of cash on hand that was available for the payment of
dividends based on the requirements of our credit facilities discussed below.

Credit Facilities. On August 12, 2005, Reddy Group, our wholly-owned subsidiary, entered intc new
credit facilities in an aggregate principal amount of $300 million with a syndicate of banks, financial
institutions and other entities as lenders, including Credit Suisse, Cayman Islands Branch, as
Administrative Agent, CIBC World Markets Corp., Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc. and Lehman
Commercial Paper, Inc. The credit facilities provided for a seven-year term loan in the amount of
$240.0 million and a five-year revolving credit facility in the amount of $60.0 million. Proceeds of the term
loan were used to repay our prior senior credit facility as previously discussed.

On January 1, 2007, Reddy Group merged with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Reddy lce Corporation,
with Reddy Corp. being the surviving entity. The credit facilitics were amended on that date to allow the
merger and to provide for the assumption of the credit facilities by Reddy Corp.

At December 31, 2006, we had $53.6 million of availability under the revolving credit facility, net of
outstanding standby letters of credit of $6.4 million. The standby letters of credit are used primarily to
secure certain insurance obligations. As of March 9, 2007, the outstanding balances of standby letters of
credit were $6.9 million. At this time, we do not anticipate any significant changes in our standby letters of
credit until the second quarter of 2007, at which time collateral will be required for our 2007 policy
renewals. However, later in 2007, this additional new collateral will be offset by reductions in collateral
related to earlier policy years. Principal balances outstanding under the revolving credit facility bear
interest per annum, at our option, at the sum of the base rate plus 0.75% or LIBOR plus 1.75%. The base
rate is defined as the greater of the prime rate (as announced from time to time by the Administrative
Agent) or the federal funds rate plus (1.59%. At December 31, 2006, the weighted average interest rate of
borrowings outstanding under the credit facilitics was 7.1%. Interest on base rate loans is payable on the
last day of each quarter. Interest on LIBOR loans is payable upon maturity of the LIBOR loan or on the
last day of the quarter if the LIBOR loan exceeds 90 days. Reddy Corp. pays a quarterly fee on the average
availability under our existing revolving credit facility based on an annuat rate of 0.5% except as described
below. The terms of the credit facilities prohibit Reddy Corp. from paying dividends and otherwise
transferring assets to Reddy Holdings, except for certain limited dividends, the proceeds of which must be
used to maintain Reddy Holdings’ corporate existence,

In addition, our credit facilities will allow us to incur up to an additional $80.0 million of incremental
term loans under our credit facilities, subject to certain conditions. No lenders have committed to provide
the incremental term loans. In the event that we incur incremental termn loans that mature on or before the
one year anniversary of the final maturity of the existing term loans and that bear interest with margins
higher than the margin applicable to any term loans outstanding under our credit facilities, the margins
applicable to the existing term loans will be increased to equal the margins applicable to the incremental
term loans. In the event that we incur incremental term loans that mature after the one-year anniversary of
the final maturity of the existing term loans and that bear interest with margins more than 0.25% higher
than the margins applicable to any term loans outstanding under our credit facilities, the margins
applicable to the existing term loans will be increased to equal the margins applicable to the incremental
term loans, less 0.25%.
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The credit facilities do not require any scheduled principal payments prior to the stated maturity
dates. Subject to certain conditions, mandatory repayments of the revolving credit facility and term loan
(and if the term loan is no longer outstanding, mandatory commitment reductions of the revolving credit
facility} are required to be made with portions of the proceeds from (1) asset sales, (2) the issuance of debt
securities and (3) insurance and condemnation awards, subject to various exceptions. In the event of a
change in control, as defined in the credit facilities, an event of default will occur under the credit facilities.
Under the credit facilities, Reddy Corp. may only pay dividends to Reddy Holdings if Reddy Corp.’s total
leverage ratio for the most recently ended fiscal quarter is less than or equal to 3.75 to 1.0. In addition, the
credit facilities preclude Reddy Corp. from declaring any dividends if an event of default under the credit
facilities has occurred and is continuing. In particular, it will be an event of default if Reddy Corp.’s
leverage ratio exceeds 4.0 to 1.0 or Reddy Corp.’s interest coverage ratio is less than 3.25 to 1.0.

The credit facilities contain financial covenants, which include the maintenance of certain financial
ratios, as defined in the credit facilities, and is collateralized by substantially all of Reddy Corp.’s assets.
Reddy Holdings guarantees Reddy Corp.’s credit facilities and such guarantee is secured by the capital
stock of Reddy Corp. At December 31, 2006, Reddy Corp. was in compliance with these covenants.

Under the restricted payments covenant, we generally are restricted from paying dividends. However,
the covenant includes an exception for paying dividends in an amount not greater than our Cumulative
Distributable Cash for the period (taken as one accounting period) from July 1, 2005 to the end of our
most recently-ended fiscal quarter for which a covenant compliance certificate under our credit facilities
has been delivered to the lenders.

“Cumulative Distributable Cash” is defined under our credit facilities as:
(a) $10,000,000, plus

(b) “Available Cash” for the period (taken as one accounting period) from July 1, 2005 to the
end of our most recently-ended fiscal quarter for which a covenant compliance certificate under our
credit facilities has been delivered to the lenders, plus

(c) the amount of any net cash proceeds received by Reddy Holdings from issuances of shares of
Reddy Holdings capital stock after the closing of our initial public offering to the extent we have
contributed such proceeds to Reddy Corp., less

(d) (i) the amount of payments made by Reddy Corp. to Reddy Holdings to fund dividend
payments on, or repurchases of, Reddy Holdings capital stock or to pay cash interest expense on, or
redeem or repurchase, Reddy Holdings notes, (ii) amounts used to make restricted investments, less

(e) to the extent occurring after the end of the most recently ended reference period and until
taken into account in determining Available Cash for the fiscal quarter in which such event has
occurred, (i) cash payments for acquisitions (except to the extent funded with indebtedness or
proceeds of asset sales or casualty events) and (ii) mandatory repayment of loans under our new credit
facilitics (other than under the revolving credit facility) during a dividend suspension period.

“Available Cash” for any fiscal quarter is defined under our credit facilities as:
(a) Adjusted EBITDA for such fiscal quarter, plus,

(b) to the extent not included in net income used to calculate for any fiscal quarter such
Adjusted EBITDA, the cash amount realized in respect of extraordinary, non-recurring or unusual
gains, and less

(¢) (i) to the extent included in net income used to calculate for any fiscal quarter such Adjusted
EBITDA, the amount of our cash interest expense, our cash tax expense, the cash cost of any
extraordinary, nonrecurring or unusual losses, cash payments on account of non-cash losses or non-
cash charges, (i) capital expenditures (except to the extent funded with indebtedness (other than the
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revolving credit facility) or proceeds of asset sales or casualty events), (iii) cash payments for
acquisitions (except to the extent funded with indebtedness or proceeds of asset sales or casualty
events) and (iv) payments and prepayments of the principal amount of indebtedness (other than
payments and prepayments of the revolving credit facility) other than to the extent funded with
indebtedness (other than indebtedness under our revolving credit facility).

| “Adjusted EBITDA” is defined under our credit facilities to be the sum of:
(a) netincome, plus

(b) to the extent deducted in determining net income, the sum of (i) amounts attributable to
depreciation and amortization, (ii} income tax expense, (iii) interest expense, (iv) any other non-cash
charges (less non-cash income) for which no cash reserves (or receivables) have been or will be set
aside (or created) including non-cash compensation expenses, (v) any loss from the extinguishment of
indebtedness, (vi) any fees paid prior to the closing date of our initial public offering in respect of the
monitoring agreement, (vii) transaction adjustments (as defined in our credit facilities and including
the fees and expenses incurred in connection with our initial public offering and the related
transactions), (viti) all fees and expenses incurred in connection with permitted acquisitions to the
extent accounted for as expenses, (ix) for the four fiscal quarters ending after September 30, 2004, an
amount equal to the sum of (x) the special transaction payments paid to certain members of
management and certain directors in connection with the issuance of the senior discount notes not to
exceed $1.3 million plus (y) an amount not to exceed $4.0 million for other expenses incurred in
connection with the issuance of the senior discount notes and the related amendment to our credit
facilities which was in effect at the time of the senior discount notes offering.

Under Reddy Corp.’s credit facilities, Reddy Corp. may only pay dividends to us to make dividend
payments on our common stock if Reddy Corp.’s total leverage ratio for the most recently ended fiscal
quarter for which a covenant compliance certificate has been delivered is less than or equal to 3.75 to 1.0.
If at the end of any fiscal quarter, Reddy Corp.’s leverage ratio is greater than 3.75 to 1.0, and therefore
Reddy Corp. is not permitted to pay dividends, Reddy Corp. will be required by Reddy Corp.’s credit
facilities to apply 50% of Reddy Corp.’s Available Cash generated during each such quarter to make a
mandatory prepayment of the loans under Reddy Corp.’s credit facilities.

In addition, we and Reddy Corp. will be precluded from paying any dividends if an event of default
under Reddy Corp.’s credit facilities has occurred and is continuing. In particular, it will be an event of
default if Reddy Corp.’s total leverage ratio exceeds 4.0 to 1.0 or Reddy Corp.’s interest coverage ratio is
less than 3.25 to 1.0.

The following table presents Adjusted EBITDA on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the
adjustments permitted under the description of the definition of Adjusted EBITDA set forth above.
Adjusted EBITDA is different from EBITDA that is derived solely from GAAP components. Adjusted
EBITDA should not be construed as an alternative to net income (loss), cash flows from operations or net
cash from operating or investing activities as defined by GAAP, and it is not necessarily indicative of cash
available to fund our cash needs as determined in accordance with GAAP. In addition, not all companies
use identical calculations, and this presentation may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of
other companies. A reconciliation of Net income (loss) to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA follows the

table.
Year ended
December 31, 2006
{unaudited,
in thousands)

Pro forma adjusted EBITDA ................... e $89,280
Total leverage ratio. . .....oovir it e 2.7:1.0
Interest coverage ratio. ..., ... iiii i e e i . 5.7:1.0
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The following table sets forth a reconciliation of Net income (loss) to EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA:

Year Ended
December 31, 2006
(in thousands)
INEE IIICOIIE . « o v v e e et e e e ee e e e et tm e i e a e e rae e aa et s s s narnanersen $14,661
Depreciation expense related to costsof sales ..o 19,517
Depreciation and amortization €Xpense. .......vovvirreieeraiiii s 5,879
INTETESt EXPENSE. . .o i it et e iran e e tan it ntaas et saa et sbas 29,624
INEEEESE IMCOTNE .« . o o v vee e et eee e e a e e e e iin s e aaaaeeaaseanaasns (869)
INCOME LAX EXPENSE. .+ - - v vvvnttrrenauenaearasasanromenaracasnanananess 9,572
| 2121 4 1 0. N LR L L EEE 78,384
Other non-cash charges:
Stock-based cOMPENSation EXPENSE .. ... .uerviereriieraaiaiiaa 4,794
Loss on disposition Of 8ssets. .. .. ..o v i 1,107
Impairment 0f @SSt ... cov v run i 3,718
Transaction eXPenses(@) .. .. ..vvvvuerrrneueen it 649
Adjusted EBITDA . ... ..ottt $88,652
Acquisition adjustments(b). . ... i $ 628
Pro forma adjusted EBITDA . .........oooiiiiiiii s $89,280

(a) Represents costs incurred in connection with our secondary stock offering in May 2006. The
secondary offering costs were paid by Reddy Holdings from the excess cash remaining from the initial
public offering of its common stock in August 2005.

(b) Represents the incremental Adjusted EBITDA of acquired businesses as if each acquisition had been
consummated on the first day of the period presented. All acquisitions included herein were
consummated on or before December 31, 2006.

Interest Rate Hedging Agreement. Effective September 12, 2005, we entered into an interest rate
hedging agreement (the “Hedge”) to fix the interest rate on a portion of our term loan facility. The Hedge
has a term of three years and ten months and an initial notional balance of $220 million. The notional
balance decreases by $20 million on October 12 of each of the following three years, beginning on
October 12, 2006. We pay a fixed rate of 4.431% on the notional balance outstanding and receives an
amount equal to 3-month LIBOR. Any net payable or receivable amount is settled quarterly. If we had
been required to settle the Hedge as of December 31, 2006, it would have received $2.6 million. The fair
value of the Hedge is included in the caption “Other Assets” in the consolidated balance sheet. Changes in
the fair value of the Hedge are recorded as “Other Comprehensive Income” in the consolidated statement
of stockholders’ equity. We are exposed to risk of loss in the event of non-performance by the counterparty
to the Hedge; however, we do not anticipate non-performance by the counterparty.

Liquidity Outlook. Due to the seasonal nature of our business, we record the majority of our revenues
and profits during the months of May through September. The majority of the cash generated from those
operations is received between July and November, We have used the excess cash generated from our 2006
selling season to fund our operations during the winter months, as well as capital expenditures, acquisitions
and dividends to our common stockholders.

We estimate that our capital expenditures for 2007 will be approximately $19 million to $21 million,
which will primarily be used to maintain and expand our traditional ice operations. There can be no
assurance that our capital expenditures will not exceed this estimate. In the normal course of our business,
we dispose of obsolete, worn-out and unneeded assets. As a result of dispositions of excess assets, we
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estimate that we will generate proceeds of approximately $2 million to $3 million in 2007 for net capital
expenditures of approximately $16 million to $19 million.

Based on our expected level of operations, we believe that cash flows from operations, together with
available borrowings under our revolving credit facility, will be adequate to meet our future liquidity needs
for at least the next twelve months. As of March 9, 2007, we had approximately $49.4 million of availability
under our revolving credit facility, which reflected an outstanding balance of $3.7 million under our
revolving credit facility and standby letters of credit of $6.9 million. Through March 9, 2007, we have
completed five acquisitions with an aggregate acquisition cost of approximately $11.3 million. We intend
to pursue additional acquisitions throughout the remainder of 2007, although such future acquisitions are
subject to significant uncertainties as to timing, price and availability.

As noted previously, we record the majority of our sales and profits during the months of May through
September and the majority of the cash generated from those operations is received in August through
November. During those months in 2007, we expect to repay all amounts borrowed under our revolving
credit facility in the spring, fund dividends on our common stock, fund current capital expenditures and
debt service and build up cash balances.

Debt and Capital Leases. The table below summarizes the future payments due under our significant
contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006:

2008 to 2010 to 2012 and

Total 2007 2000 2611 thereafter
(in millions)
Long-termdebt(1) ........................ $5145 $153 $448 $65.8  $3886
Operating leases .................cooovns. 37.2 9.7 14.1 8.6 4.8
Purchase obligations{2) .................... 24.7 4.6 9.1 9.1 19
Total contractual obligations ............... $576.4 $296 $680  $83.5  $3953

(1) Includes estimated cash interest to be paid over the remaining terms of the debt.

(2) Consists of our obligation to purchase 2,000 merchandisers and $0.75 million of spare parts per year
from a certain vendor under a supply agreement that expires May 31, 2012,

General Economic Trends and Seasonality

Our results of operations are gencrally affected by the economic trends in our market area, but results
to date have not been significantly impacted by inflation. If we experience an extended period of high
inflation, which affects multiple expense items, we believe that we will be able to pass on these higher costs
to our customers.

The ice business is highly seasonal, with the bulk of demand coming in the warmer spring and summer
months. Accordingly, we experience seasonal fluctuations in our net sales and profitability. We make a
disproportionate amount of our sales in the second and third calendar quarters. We also typically have net
income in these same periods, whereas we typically experience net loss in the first and fourth calendar
quarters. We believe that over two-thirds of our revenues will occur during the second and third calendar
quarters when the weather conditions are generally warmer and demand is greater, while less than one-
third of our revenues will occur during the first and fourth calendar quarters when the weather is generally
cooler. This belief is consistent with historical trends. As a result of seasonal revenue declines and the lack
of proportional corresponding expense decreases, we will most likely experience lower profit margins and
even losses during the first and fourth calendar quarters. In addition, because our operating results depend
significantly on sales during our peak scason, our quarterly results of operations may fluctuate significantly
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as a result of adverse weather during this peak selling period if the weather is unusually cool or rainy on a
more national or regional basis.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or
future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Critical Accounting Policies

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of our customers to make the required payments on their accounts. We have
attempted to reserve for these estimated losses based on our past experience with similar accounts
receivable and believe our reserves to be adequate. 1f the financial condition of our customers were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments on their accounts, additional
allowances may be required.

Long-Lived Assets, Property and equipment is carried at cost and is being depreciated on a straight-
line basis over estimated lives of 10 to 40 years for buildings and site improvements and 2 to 20 years for
plant, equipment and machinery. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, while
capital improvements that extend the useful lives of the underlying assets are capitalized. We accounted
for all of our historical acquisitions using the purchase method of accounting and as a result recorded
significant amounts of goodwill. Other intangible assets include the following that are amortized over their
useful lives:

Intangible Assets Useful Life

Goodwill ... Indefinite life

Trade name. . .....oovveervevneeennnns Indefinite life

Customer relationships. . .............. Straight line method over economic lives of eight to 30 years
Debt issuance costs . . ..ovveeeiiinnn.nn Effective interest method over the term of the debt

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets
to be held and used are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. The determination
of recoverability of long-lived assets and certain other identifiable intangible assets is based on an estimate
of undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of the asset or its disposition. Measurement of an
impairment loss for long-lived assets and other intangible assets that management expects to hold and use
are based on the fair value of the asset. Long-lived assets 1o be disposed of are reported at the lower of
carrying amount or net realizable value. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” goodwill is evaluated using a market valuation approach, based on valuations of
comparable businesses, multiples of earnings of comparable businesses and discounted cash flows.
Goodwill is evaluated at each fiscal year end and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. .

Inherent in the determination of such future cash flows and valuations are certain estimates and
judgments, including the interpretation of current economic indicators and market values and assumptions
about our strategic plans with regards to our operations. To the extent additional information arises or our
strategies change, it is possible that our conclusions regarding the impairment of goodwill or other long-
lived assets could change and result in a material effect on our financial position or results of operations.
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Stock-based Compensation. Effective January 1, 2005, we adopted the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, as amended by SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure”. Under the provisions of SFAS
No. 148, we selected the modified prospective method of adoption and therefore began recognizing
stock-based employee compensation cost related to all employee awards that were outstanding as of
January 1, 2005.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123(R),
“Share-Based Payment”, which establishes accounting standards for all transactions in which an entity
exchanges its equity instruments for goods and services. SFAS No. 123(R) focuses primarily on accounting
for transactions with employees, and carries forward without change prior guidance for share-based
payments for transactions with non-employees. SFAS No. 123(R) eliminates the intrinsic value
measurement objective in APB Opinion 25 and generatly requires companies to measure the cost of
employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the fair value of the
award on the date of the grant. The standard requires grant date fair value to be estimated using either an
option-pricing model which is consistent with the terms of the award or a market observed price, if such a
price exists. Such cost must be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide
service in exchange for the award, which is usually the vesting period. The standard also requires us to
estimate the number of instruments that will ultimately be issued, rather than accounting for forfeitures as
they occur.

We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method and straight
line amortization of compensation cost. Under the modified prospective method, compensation cost is
recognized for all awards granted after adoption of the standard and for the unvested portion of previously
granted awards that are outstanding on that date.

Through December 31, 2004, we accounted for stock-based awards under the intrinsic value method
prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related
interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost related to stock options was refilected in the
net income (loss) available to common stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2004 as all outstanding
stock options had an exercise price equal to or greater than the market value of the underlying common stock
on the date of grant.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs—an amendment of ARB
No. 43, chapter 4”. SFAS No. 151 seeks to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) in the determination of inventory carrying
costs. The statement requires such costs to be treated as a current period expense. This statement was
effective for fiscal years beginning after July 15, 2005. We adopted SFAS No. 151 on January 1, 2006. The
adoption of SFAS No. 151 did not have a material effect on our results of operations and financial
position.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets, an
Amendment to APB Opinion No. 29”. The accounting guidance in APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for
Nonmonetary Transactions”, is based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be
measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged. The guidance in APB No. 29, however, included
certain exceptions to that principle. SFAS No. 153 amends APB No. 29 to eliminate the exception for
nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges
of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial
substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the
exchange. SFAS No. 153 was effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods
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beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS No. 153 on January 1, 2006 had no effect on our
results of operations and financial position.

We adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”, on January 1, 2006. SFAS
No. 123(R) establishes accounting standards for all transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity
instruments for goods and services. SFAS No. 123(R) focuses primarily on accounting for transactions with
employees, and carries forward without change prior guidance for share-based payments for transactions
with non-employees. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), we have selected the modified prospective
method adoption and straight line amortization of compensation cost. The adoption of this standard did
not have a material effect on our results of operations or financial position.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS No. 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and
expands disclosures about fair value estimates. This standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact that this standard may have on our results of
operations and financial position.

In September 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108. SAB 108 provides
guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year
misstatements. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2006. We are currently
evaluating the impact that this standard may have on our results of operations and financial position.

In June, 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN™) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes”. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing the
minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial
statements. FIN 48 utilizes a two-step approach for evaluating tax positions. The first step, recognition,
occurs when an enterprise concludes that a tax position, based solely on its technical merits is more likely
than not to be sustained upon examination. The sccond step, measurement, is only addressed if the
recognition criteria have been satisfied. In the measurement process, the tax benefit is measured at the
largest amount of benefit, determined on a cumulative probability basis, that is more likely than not to be
realized upon final settlement. FIN 48’s use of the term “more likely than not” consistent with how the
term is used in SFAS No. 109 (i.c. the likelihood of an occurrence greater than 50%). FIN 48 applies to all
tax positions related to income taxes subject to SFAS 109. We will adopt FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007 as
required and are currently evaluating the impact adoption will have on our results of operations and
financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities, including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”. SFAS No. 159 permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not
currently required to be measured at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by
providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring
related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions.
SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, although earlier adoption is
permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact that this standard may have on our results of operations
and financial position.

43




ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk generally represents the risk that losses may occur in the value of financial instruments as
a result of movements in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices. Our main
market risk exposure category is interest rate risk.

We arc exposed to some market risk due to the floating interest rates under our credit facilities.
Principal balances outstanding under the term loan and the revolving credit facility bear interest, at our
option, at the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 1.75% or the prime rate (as announced
from time to time by the Administrative Agent) plus 0.75%.

Effective September 12, 2005, we entered into an interest rate hedging agreement (the “Hedge”) to fix
the interest rate on a portion of the term loan outstanding under the credit facilities. See “Liquidity and
Capital Resources—Interest Rate Hedging Agreement”.

As of December 31, 2006, our credit facilities had an outstanding principal balance of $240.0 million
at a weighted average interest rate of 7.1% per annum. At December 31, 2006, the 30-day LIBOR rate was
5.3%. If LIBOR were to increase by 1% from year end levels, the annual increase in interest expense,
given our principal balances at December 31, 2006 and the effect of the Hedge, would be approximately
$0.4 million.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data required hereunder are included in this report as set
forth in Item 15(a) of Part IV hereof and are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Our management, under the supervision and with
the participation of our chief exccutive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the
design and operation of our “disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™)) as of December 31, 2006.
Based on that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2006.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in
Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f).

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial
statement preparation and presentation.

Management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, assessed the
effectiveness of our internal controt aver financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, In making this
assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment we
believe that, as of December 31, 2006, our internal control over financial reporting is effective based on
those criteria.




Our independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, has issued an audit
report on our assessment of our internal control over financial reporting, which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting.  There has been no change in our internal
control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III
ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information called for by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement
for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The information called for by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement
for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

[TEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information called for by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement
for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information called for by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement
for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information called for by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement
for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report or are incorporated by
reference:

1. Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004,

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
Notes to Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
2. Financial Statement Schedules

None. All financial statement schedules are omitted because the information is not required, is not

material or is otherwise included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto included
elsewhere in this Annual Report.

3. Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

31 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc., dated
August 2, 2005. (Exhibit 3.1)(6)

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. (Exhibit 3.2)(8)

4.1 Form of Certificate of Common Stock (Exhibit 4.1)(6)

4.2 Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. Shareholders Agreement, dated August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 9.1)(3)

4.3 Indenture of 10%4% Senior Discount Notes due 2012 between Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. and
U.S. Bank National Association dated as of October 27, 2004, (Exhibit 4.2)(4)

4.4 Supplemental Indenture of 10%4% Senior Discount Notes due 2012 between Reddy Ice
Holdings, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, dated as of July 28, 2005,
(Exhibit 4.6)(8)

10.1 Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan, effective August 15, 2003.
(Exhibit 10.1)(3)

10.2 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Officers of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. and
Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc., effective August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.2)(3)

10.3 Form of iIndemnification Agreement between Officers of Packaged Ice, Inc. and Packaged
Ice, Inc. (n/k/a Reddy lce Corporation), effective August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.3)(3)

10.4 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Directors of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. and
Reddy lce Holdings, Inc., effective August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.4)(3)

10.5 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Directors of Packaged Ice, Inc. and
Packaged Ice, Inc. (n/k/a Reddy Ice Corporation), effective August 14, 2003.
(Exhibit 10.5)(3)

10.6 Form of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. Stock Option Agreement, dated August 14, 2003.
(Exhibit 10.11)(3)
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22%

10.23t

10.24
10.25

10.26

10.27
11.1*
14.1

2111
23.1%
31.1%

31.2%

Form of Amendment No. 1 to Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. Stock Option Agreement of
August 14, 2003, dated as of November 7, 2003. (Exhibit 10.12)(3)

Employment Agreement of William P. Brick, dated August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.13}(3)
Employment Agreement of Jimmy C. Weaver, dated August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.14)(3)
Employment Agreement of Steven J. Janusek, dated August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.15)(3)
Employment Agreement of Ben D. Key, dated August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.16)(3)
Employment Agreement of Thomas L. Dann, dated August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.17)(3)
Employment Agreement of Graham D. Davis, dated August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.18)(3)
Employment Agreement of Joseph A. Geloso, dated August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.19)(3)
Employment Agreement of Mark A. Steffek, dated August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.20(3)
Employment Agreement of Raymond D. Booth, dated August 14, 2003. (Exhibit 10.21)(3)

Purchase Agreement among Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc., Credit Suisse First Boston LLC,
CIBC World Markets Corp. and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., dated October 27, 2004,
(Exhibit 10.1)(4)

Registration Rights Agreement among Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc., Credit Suisse First
Boston LLC, CIBC World Markets Corp. and Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. dated October 27,
2004. (Exhibit 10.1)(4)

Dealer Manager and Consent Solicitation Agreement between Reddy Ice Group, Inc. and
Credit Suisse First Boston LLC dated as of March 22, 2005. (Exhibit 10.25)(5)

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among Reddy Ice Group, Inc., Various
Financial Institutions and Other Persons from Time to Time Parties thereto, Credit Suisse,
Cayman Islands Branch, Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc., Lehman Brothers Inc. and
CIBC World Markets Corp. dated as of August 9, 2005. (Exhibit 10.1)(7)

Amended and Restated Parent Guaranty and Pledge Agreement, between Reddy Ice
Holdings, Inc. and Credit Suisse dated as of August 12, 2005. (Exhibit 10.26)(8)

First Amendment and Assumption Agreement among Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc., Reddy Ice
Group, Inc., Reddy Ice Corporation, the Lenders and Credit Suisse, Cayman Islands
Branch, dated as of January 1, 2007,

Amended and Restated Borrower Pledge and Security Agreement between Reddy Ice
Corporation and Credit Suisse, Cayman Islands Branch dated as of January 1, 2007.

Amendment to Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan. (Exhibit 10.28)(8)

Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. 2005 Long Term Incentive and Share Award Plan.

(Exhibit 10.29)(8)

Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement for certain members of senior management.
(Exhibit 10.1)(%)

Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement. (Exhibit 10.2)(9)

Statement Regarding Computation of Per Share Earnings

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as of August 8, 2005.(Exhibit 14.1)(10)

List of subsidiaries.

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Exhibit No. Description
32.1% Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2¢ Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

»

T
(1)

)
&)
)
©)
(6)
™
(8)

9

Included in our consolidated financial statements.
Filed herewith.

Filed as an Exhibit to Packaged Ice, Inc.’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 14, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to Packaged Ice, Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on June 30, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to our Form S-4 filed with the Commission on November 13, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to our Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 27, 2004 and incorporated
herein by reference,

Filed as an Exhibit to our Form 10-X filed with the Commission on March 31, 2005 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to our Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on August 4, 2005 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to our Form 8-K filed with the Commission on August 15, 2005 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to our Form S-4/A filed with the Commission on August 24, 2005 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an Exhibit to our Form 8-K filed with the Commission on November 3, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(10) Filed as an Exhibit to our Form 10-K filed with the Commission on March 16, 2006 and incorporated

herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC,
By: /s/ STEVEN J. JANUSEK
Steven J. Janusek
March 13, 2007 Chief Financial and Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

s/ WILLIAM P. BRICK Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer March 13, 2007
William P. Brick

fs/ JIMMY C. WEAVER President, Chief Operating Officer and Director March 13, 2007*
Jimmy C. Weaver
/s/ THEODORE J. HOST Director March 13, 2007
Theodore J. Host
/s{ MICHAEL 8. MCGRATH  Director March 13, 2007
Michael S. McGrath
/s/ TRACY L. NOLL Director March 13, 2007
Tracy L. Noll
/s{ ROBERT N. VERDECCHIO Director March 13, 2007

Robert N. Verdecchio
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc.
Dallas, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. and subsidiary
(the “Company™) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), Share-Based
Payment.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 12,
2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 12, 2007




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc.
Dallas, Texas

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying “Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting,” that Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. and subsidiary (the
“Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based
on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment
and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions,
and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of
the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria
established in Infernal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the criteria
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established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2006 and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2006 of the Company and our report dated March 12, 2007 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company’s
adoption of new accounting standard.

/s{ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 12, 2007
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cashand cashequivalents. ...........c.. i e
Accounts receivable, met .. ... .. i i i e i,
103 41 03 <
Prepaid expenses and other Current assets. ......oovvvii it iniernrsans
Deferred tax asseLS . .. vttt i ie it e e i s,
Total CUITENt G858, . oottt it ie e tenteretrerrna s er e asassaananans
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net . ...0iitiiie e eeiiiieiaiainnans
GOODWILL . . .ottt it et it et et s anaaragaaaaeeesasarannnans
OTHER INTANGIBLES, Net ...ttt e rinnarernaasasacananssens
OTHER ASSE TS .t i i e e et et e it anananaas

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Current portion of long-term obligations. ............. ..o

Revolving creditfacility .. ...

Accountspayable . ... ... ... e

ACCTUEA EXPEIISES . ..ottt vttt ir e v ie e eae i raati ey

Dividendspayable...... ... i
Total current liabilities. . ........... ... ... e e

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS . . ... e et
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES, net ........ .ot
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 13).........covviennnt
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 75,000,000 shares authorized; 21,809,395 and
21,690,042 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
TESPECHIVEIY . oottt i e e

Additional paid-incapital ........... .. e

Unearned cOmMPensation ... .....ovitirt ittt e e

Accumulated deficit . ... ... . e

Accumulated other comprehensive income. ............ooiii i
Total stockholders’ equity..........oiiiiiiii it

TOT AL . i i e i

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

December 31,

2006 2005

(in thousands, except
share data)

$ 39434 § 33,997
25723 23376
11,455 10,087

2,719 2,356
1,620 2,740

80,951 72,556
230,242 231,816
216,370 214,968

79,889 82,345

2,820 2,079

$610,272  $603,764

$ 51 % 65

14,090 12,962
18,659 18,150
8,828 8,296

41,628 39,473
364,844 352,895
36,152 28,213

218 217
216,802 213,096
— (52)

(51,990)  (32,065)
2,618 1,987

167,648 183,183

$610,272  $603,764




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARY
Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{in thousands, except per share amounts)
REVEIIUES. vttt t ettt et e ean e enatbrrannnsenanseeanns $346,038  $319,772  $285,727
Cost of sales, excluding depreciationexpense . ................... 212,851 196,223 173,066
Depreciation expense related tocostofsales .................... 19,517 18,838 17,850
Grossprofit. ... ... o 113,670 104,711 94 811
Operating expenses. . .......... S 49,978 42,030 36,928
Depreciation and amortization €Xpense . .. ......o.oooviiiianiann. 5,879 5,691 5,335
Loss on dispositionofassets . ............... i, 1,107 1,848 398
Impairment of assets. .. ..o ir i e e 3,718 5,725 —
Management agreement termination fees and transaction bonuses
andexpenses(Note 10) .....oooviirinn it ens — 6,171 —
Income fromoperations. .. .........oiinii i 52,988 43,246 52,150
Loss on extinguishment ofdebt ........................ ... ..., — 28,189 —
| 11053 (= =244 1) A 29,624 34,421 25,105
INterest iNCOME . ...oootrti it innaanannanas (869) — —
Income (loss) before incometaxes. .. ... ..., 24,233 (19,364) 27,045
Income tax (expense}benefit .............. ... .ol (9,572) 7,248 {10,494)
Net income (l088). ... ..ot i i 14,661 {12,116) 16,551
Preferred dividends. . . ... rrrr e — — 10,583
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders ............. $ 14,661 $(12,116) $ 5968
Basic net income (loss) per share:
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders ........... $ 068 § (072) § 044
‘ Weighted average common shares outstanding ................ 21,405 16,760 13,675
‘ Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders ........... $ 068 § (0.72) $§ 044
| Weighted average common shares outstanding ................ 21,716 16,760 13,703
Cash dividends declared pershare. ..o, $ 158 §$ 059 3% 076

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Netineome (JOSS) - oo vve ettt i et et $ 14661 § (12,116) $ 16,551
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities
(excluding working capital from acquisitions):
Depreciation and amortization expense . .. ... c.ove i e 25,396 24,529 23,185
Amortization of debt issue costs and debt discounts. .. ... . .. i 13,596 13,358 4,410
Deferred tax expense (benefit) ... ... i i e 8,878 (7,115) 10,176
Loss on disposition of assets . .. ... 1,107 1,848 398
Stock-based compensation EXPEnsSe. . . . . ...t i i 4,794 2,947 302
Impairment of A5SE15. . ..o i i i i i i s 3,718 5,725 —
Realizedgainonderivative. ... ... ... ittt i i — — (3,362)
Loss on extinguishment of debt. ... ... ... L —_ 28,189 —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable, inventory and prepaid assets .. ... vt i iin i {3,957 (1,391) (4,537)
Accounts payable, accrued expensesandother. . ... ... .. L 2,072 (387) 663
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ......... o i s 70,265 55,587 47,786
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property additions. . .. ... ot e i i (18,582) (19,265) (15,988)
Proceeds from dispositionsofassets. . ... o i i il i e 1,967 2,108 2,657
Cost of acquisitions, netof cashacquired . ... ... .. ittt (12,936) (936) (16,874)
Collection of note receivable. . ... ... . i e 17 —_ —
Cost of purchasesof leased assets. . .. .. ... .. i it — (2,458) —
Neit cash used in investing activities ....... ... .o (29,534) {20,551) (30,205)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends and other distributions to stockholders ............ ..ot (34,054) (4,507) (10,401)
Repurchase and retirement of common StOck. . . . ... ... i i (1,035) — —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . .. ...o. i i e — 1,799 -
Proceeds from the issuance of common and preferred stock, net of issuance costs . ... .. - 116,178 250
Redemption of preferred stock. ... ... it i i e —_ — (114,189)
Proceeds fromthe issuanceof debt. ............ ... . o i — 240,000 100,163
Deferred debt COStS. .. .. .. it i i e e et —_ (5.370) (4,739)
Borrowings (repayments) under the revolving credit facility, net .. .................. - (5,450) 5,450
Repaymentof debt . ... oo o e e {205y  (348,167) {2,438)
Net cash used in financing activities ... .....oo i i s {35,294) (5,517) (25,904)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ............ 5437 29,519 {8,323)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNINGOFPERIOD. .................. 33,9697 4,478 12,801
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,ENDOFPERIOD. .. ......0vvvviinacnennnn $ 39434 § 33997 § 4478
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash payments forinterest .. ... . e $ 15930 $§ 23471 § 24,666
Cash receipts of Interest INComE . ... ...ttt tnnn i e e e eanan $ 799 % — 3 —
Cash payments (refunds) of InCOME LAXES. . . ..o oot $ B4 0§ (114 3 300
Borrowings under the revolving credit facility. . .. ... ... . L iiiiii $ 45905 $ 75900 § 53,100
Repayments under the revolving creditfacility. . . ......... ..., $(45,905) 3 (81,350) 3§ (47.650)
Cash dividends declared, notpaid. . . ......... .. .. e § 8828 § 829 % —
Increase in fair value of derivative ... ... .. ... . . ... i $ 631 3 1987 § 2464
Additions to property and equipment included in accounts payable. . ................ $§ 326 § %08 3 —
Reversal of valuation allowance on deferred taxassets. .. ......................... 5 — 3 — § 32,760
Issuance of notes payable—premium financing of insurance . .............. .. ...... S — 3 8 3 931
Excess tax benefit from exercise of employee stockoptions . . .......oovinnaaanas S — § (2258 § —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION

Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. (“Reddy Holdings™), and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Reddy Ice Group, Inc.
(“Reddy Group”), referred to collectively as the “Company”, manufactures and distributes packaged ice
products and bottled water and owns and operates refrigerated warehouses. The Company is the largest
manufacturer of packaged ice products in the United States. The Company serves approximately 82,000
customer locations in 31 states and the District of Columbia.

On January 1, 2007, Reddy Ice Group, Inc. merged with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Reddy Ice
Corporation (“Reddy Corp.”), with Reddy Corp. being the surviving entity.

On August 12, 2005, Reddy Holdings completed an initial public offering of its common stock (see
Note 10). As a result of the offering, Reddy Holdings’ common shares are publicly traded on the New
York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “FRZ”.

On August 2, 2005, the Company effected a 138 for 1 stock split and, in conjunction therewith,
amended and restated the Company’s certificate of incorporation to increase the number of authorized
shares of the Company’s common stock and preferred stock. Ail common share and per common share
amounts in these consolidated financial statements prior to August 2, 2005 have been retroactively
adjusted for all periods presented to give effect to the stock split, including reclassifying an amount equal
to the increase in par value from additional paid-in capital to common stock.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation. 'The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Reddy Ice
Holdings, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an
original maturity of three mont?s or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable.  Accounts receivable are net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $0.6 million
at December 31, 2006 and 2005. The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make the required payments on their accounts. The
estimated losses are based on past experience with similar accounts receivable. If the financial condition of
the Company’s customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required. The following table represents the roll-forward of the allowance for
doubtful accounts:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)

Beginning balance ...l $ 600 $656 $ 114
Charges tO CXPENSE. ..ot ier i ree e rnnneas 86 645 653
Other(1}. ..o i e (139) (701) (111)
Endingbalance ...t $ 552 $ 600 8§ 656

(1) Other activity includes direct write-offs of accounts receivable and other adjustments.
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continned)

Inventories. Inventories consist of raw materials and supplies and finished goods. Raw materials and
supplies include ice packaging material, spare parts, bottled water supplies and merchandiser parts.
Finished goods include packaged ice and bottled water. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or
market and include overhead allocations. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out and average cost
methods.

Property and equipment.  Property and equipment is carried at cost and is being depreciated on a
straight-line basis over estimated lives of 10 to 40 years for buildings and site improvements and 2 to
20 years for plant, equipment and machinery. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred,
while capital improvements that extend the useful lives of the underlying assets are capitalized.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 142, *Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company does not amortize its goodwill
and certain intangible assets with an indefinite life. Other intangible assets include the following that are
amortized over their useful lives:

Intangible Assets Useful Life

Goodwill............ .o Indefinite life

Tradename ...........coietiininnnnnnnnnnns Indefinite life

Customer relationships ..............o0n sl Straight line method over economic
lives of eight to 30 years

Debtissue costs. ... vuvtrn i iiarinnnn Effective interest method over the
term of the debt

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets to be held and
used are reviewed for impairment or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable, The determination of recoverability of long-lived
assets and certain other identifiable intangible assets is based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash
flows resulting from the use of the asset or its disposition. Measurement of an impairment loss for long-
lived assets and other intangible assets that management expects to hold and use are based on the fair
value of the asset. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or net
realizable value.

The Company reviewed two pieces of real estate in the ice business as a result of a pending sale of one
property and physical damage to another in accordance with SFAS No. 144. As a result of this review, the
Company recorded an impairment charge of $0.4 million during the three months ended June 30, 2006.

Impairment of Goodwill. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill is evaluated using a market
valuation approach, which is based on the valuations of comparable businesses, multiples of earnings of
comparable businesses and discounted cash flows, The Company evaluates goodwill at each fiscal year end
and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

Due to the significant reduction in bottled water sales volumes related to a particular customer, the
Company evaluated the goodwill recorded in the bottled water portion of its non-ice business segment in
accordance with SFAS No. 142 during the three months ended September 30, 2006. As a result of such
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

evaluation, the Company recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $3.3 million, which resulted in the full
write-off of goodwill in the Company’s bottled water operations.

Due to the significant reduction in cold storage sales volumes related to a particular customer, the
Company evaluated the goodwill recorded in the cold storage portion of its non-ice business segment in
accordance with SFAS No. 142, As a result of such evaluation, the Company recorded a non-cash
impairment charge of $5.7 million during the three months ended June 30, 2005, which resulted in the full
write-off of goodwill in the Company’s cold storage operations.

Income Taxes. The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method, which requires,
among other things, recognition of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements or
tax returns. Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing
assets and liabilities and the recognition of available tax carryforwards.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized when product (packaged ice, ice packaging bags, and
bottled water) is delivered to and accepted by customers. There is no right of return with respect to the
packaged ice, bags delivered and bottled water. Revenue resulting from Ice Factory management
agreements and cold storage services is recognized as earned under contract terms.

Earnings Per Share. The computation of net income (loss) per share is based on net income (loss),
after deducting any preferred stock dividends, divided by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding. For the year ended December 31, 2005, there were 1.2 million shares of dilutive securities
which were not included in the computation of diluted net loss per share as their effect would be anti-
ditutive. All shares outstanding at December 31, 2006 were included in the computation of diluted earnings
per share.

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income (loss) for basic and diluted computation:

Netincome (Io8S8) .. .vivrveenneineeiiiiaiiaiinaas $14,661 $(12,116)  $16,551

Preferred dividends. . .. ..o, — —_ " 10,583

Net income {loss) available to common stockholders ....... $14,661 $(12,116) $ 5968
Basic net income (loss) per share:

Weighted average common shares outstanding ............ 21,405 16,760 13,675

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders ........ $ 0.68 $ (0.72) $ 044
Diluted net income (loss) per share:

Weighted average common shares outstanding ............ 21,405 16,760 13,675

Shares issuable from assumed conversion of stock options or

restrictedstock. .. ... i 311 — 28
Weighted average common shares outstanding, as adjusted . 21,716 16,760 13,703
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders ....... $ 0.68 $ (072 $ 0.44
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair Values of Financial Instruments. The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, debt obligations and an interest rate hedge
agreement. The carrying amount of cash, cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable and trade accounts
payable are representative of their respective fair values due to the short-term maturity of these
instruments. See Note 8 regarding the fair value of the Company’s debt obligations and interest rate hedge.

Interest Rate Hedging Agreement. The differential to be paid or received on the interest rate hedging
agreement is accrued as interest rates change and is recognized over the life of the agreement as an
increase or decrease in interest expense. The Company does not use this instrument for trading purposes.
The Company entered into this hedging arrangement for the purpose of hedging the anticipated cash
payments for interest associated with its variable rate debt. The cffect of this instrument is to fix the
interest rate on a portion of the Company’s variable rate term debt.

Stock-based compensation. At December 31, 2006 and 2003, the Company had two stock-based
employee compensation plans, the Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. Long Term Incentive and Share Award Plan
(the “2005 Equity Incentive Plan”) and the Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan (the “2003
Stock Option Plan™), under which stock options and other forms of equity compensation may be granted
from time to time. See Note 11 for further information regarding the plans.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No, 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure”. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 148, the
Company selected the modified prospective method of adoption and therefore began recognizing
stock-based employee compensation cost related to the 2003 Stock Option Plan beginning January 1, 2005,
as if the fair value-based accounting method had been used to account for all employee awards granted,
modified or settled since the inception of the 2003 Stock Option Plan on August 15, 2003. The Company
has also recorded stock-based compensation expense related to the issuance of 250 shares each of
restricted common stock and preferred stock since August 15, 2003, the date such restricted common stock
and preferred stock were granted.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123(R),
“Share-Based Payment”, which establishes accounting standards for all transactions in which an entity
exchanges its equity instruments for goods and services. SFAS No. 123(R) focuses primarily on accounting
for transactions with employees, and carries forward without change prior guidance for share-based
payments for transactions with non-employees. SFAS No. 123(R) eliminates the intrinsic value
measurement objective in APB Opinion 25 and generally requires companies to measure the cost of
employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the fair value of the
award on the date of the grant. The standard requires grant date fair value to be estimated using either an
option-pricing model which is consistent with the terms of the award or a market observed price, if such a
price exists. Such cost must be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide
service in exchange for the award, which is usually the vesting period. The standard also requires the
Company to estimate the number of instruments that will ultimately be issued, rather than accounting for
forfeitures as they occur.
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) on Januvary 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method
and straight line amortization of compensation cost. Under the modified prospective method,
compensation cost is recognized for all awards granted after adoption of the standard and for the unvested
portion of previously granted awards that are outstanding on that date. The adoption of this standard did
not have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations and financial position.

Through December 31, 2004, the Company accounted for the 2003 Stock Option Plan under the
intrinsic value method prescribed by APB Opinion No, 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”,
and related interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost related to stock options is reflected
in the net income (loss) available to common stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2004 as all stock
options granted under the 2003 Stock Option Plan had an exercise price equal to or greater than the market
value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on the
net income (loss) of the Company had it applied the fair value recognition provisions of stock-based
compensation as described in SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended by
SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure.”

Year Ended
December 31, 2004
(in thousands, except
per share amounts)

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders, asreported ................ $5,968
Add: Employee stock-based compensation expense included in reported net

income (10ss), net Of taX. . .. ..ot e 185
Less: Total employee stock-based compensation expense determined under fair

value based methods for all awards, netoftax ............cc ., 325
Pro forma net income (loss) available to common stockholders . ................. $5,828

Basic net income (loss) per share:

ASTEPOTTEd. . . .ottt e $ 044

Proforma . ... e 0.43
Diluted net income (loss) per share:

ASTEPOITE. L. ot e e $ 044

Proforma . ... o i e 0.43

Use of Estimates. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements. In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory
Costs—an amendment of ARB No. 43, chapter 4”. SFAS No. 151 clarifies the accounting for abnormal
amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) in the
determination of inventory carrying costs. The statement requires such costs to be treated as a current
period expense. This statement was effective for fiscal years beginning after July 15, 2005 and SFAS
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

No. 151 was adopted on January 1, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 151 did not have a material effect on
the Company’s results of operation and financial position.

In December 2004, the FASB issucd SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets, an
Amendment to APB Opinion No. 29”. The accounting guidance in APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for
Nonmonetary Transactions”, is based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be
measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged. The guidance in APB No. 29, however, included
certain exceptions to that principle. SFAS No. 153 amends APB No. 29 to eliminate the exception for
nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges
of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial
substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the
exchange. SFAS No. 153 was effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods
beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS No. 153 on January 1, 2006 had no effect on the
Company’s results of operations and financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosures about fair value estimates. This standard is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that this standard
may have on its results of operations and financial position.

In September 2006, the Securitics and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
(“SAB”) No. 108. SAB 108 provides guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior year
misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that this standard may have on
its results of operations and financial position.

In June, 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes”. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing the
minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial
statements. FIN 48 utilizes a two-step approach for evaluating tax positions. The first step, recognition,
occurs when an enterprise concludes that a tax position, based solely on its technical merits is more likely
than not to be sustained upon examination. The second step, measurement, is only addressed if the
recognition criteria have been satisfied. In the measurement process, the tax benefit is measured at the
largest amount of benefit, determined on a cumulative probability basis, that is more likely than not to be
realized upon final settlement. FIN 48’s use of the term “more likely than not” is consistent with how the
term is used in SFAS No. 109 (i.e. the likelihood of an occurrence greater than 50%). FIN 48 applies to all
tax positions related to income taxes subject to SFAS No. 109. The Company will adopt FIN 48 as of
January 1, 2007 as required and is currently evaluating the impact adoption will have on its results of
operations and financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities, including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”. SFAS No. 159 permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not
currently required to be measured at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported carnings caused by measuring
related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions.
SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, although earlier adoption is
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that this standard may have on its results of
operations and financial position.

3. ACQUISITIONS

During 2006 and 2005, the Company purchased ten and two ice companies, respectively. The total
purchase price was allocated to the acquired assets and assumed liabilities based upon estimates of their
respective fair values as of the closing dates using valuations and other studies. The following table
summarizes the aggregate purchase prices and estimated aggregate fair values of the assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition (dollars in millions):

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Total acquisition costs, including direct acquisition costs. . ........... $129 309 8§169
Total assets acquired . .. ..ottt $ 350 303 $ 61
Total liabilitiesassumed ............ ... i i 0.3 — (1.8)
Net assets aCqUIred. . ... ovvnin et e it iiraneraaans $ 47 $03 §$ 43

The excess of the aggregate purchase price over the net assets acquired was allocated to property and
equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets as follows (dollars in millions):

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Goodwill. . ... e $ 48 $04 $ 83
Other intangible assets ........... it 34 02 4.3
Total excess purchase price ...........c.veieiiineiiiiennreeenn, $ 82 $06 $12.6

Other intangible assets were coraprised of customer lists, which are being amortized over useful lives
of eight to 30 years. The acquisitions were funded out of the Company’s operating cash flows.
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. ACQUISITIONS (Continued)

The results of operations of the 2006 acquisitions are included in the Company’s consolidated results
of operations from their respective acquisition dates, which range from January 6, 2006 to December 22,
2006. The results of operations of the 2005 acquisitions are included in the Company’s consolidated results
of operations from their respective acquisition dates, both of which occurred in the third quarter of 2005.
The following unaudited pro forma information presents the Company’s consolidated results of operations
(i) for the year ended December 31, 2006 as if the ten acquisitions in 2006 had all occurred on January 1,
2006 and (ii) for the year ended December 31, 2005 as if the ten acquisitions in 2006 and the two
acquisitions in 2005 had all occurred on January 1, 2005:

ProfOrmarevenues ... ....ou ittt i i e
Pro forma net income (loss) available to common stockholders. . .. ...

4. INVENTORIES

Raw materialsand supplies ....... ... ... .o i,

Finished goods
Total .......

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings and site improvements. .. ..........i i i i
Plant, equipment and machinery............ ..ol
ConStruction iN PrOZIESS . .. ... veruiniiiit it ean i eaaananinrnenss

Total .......

...................................................

Less: accumulated depreciation. ............oo oo
Total property and equipment, net.........covrvreneennaanenans

Year Ended
December 31,

2006 2005

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

$348.864 $328,330
$ 14,747 $(11,034)

December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)

$ 8664 § 7801
2,791 2,286
$ 11,455 § 10,087

December 31,
2006 2005

(in thousands)
$ 21,198 § 21,172
74,585 73,221
196,141 180,545
1,734 1,116
293,658 276,054
63,416 44,238
$230,242 $231,816

Depreciation expense related to cost of sales for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
was $19.5 million, $18.8 million and $17.9 million, respectively.

Depreciation expense included in depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1.4 million, $1.4 million and $1.2 million, respectively.
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REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

Goodwill was allocated to the Company’s business segments as follows:

December 31,
2006 2005
{in thousands)
Tee products. . ..ot $216,370  $211,620
Non-ice products and services . ..............covvvirinen.... — 3,348
11+ $216,370 $214,968

As discussed in Note 2, the Company recorded non-cash impairment charges of $3.3 million during
the three months ended September 30, 2006 and $5.7 million during the three months ended June 30,
2005 related to goodwill in the Company’s non-ice products and services segment.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, other intangible assets consisted of the following:

December 31,

2006 2005
{in thousands)

Non-amortizable intangible assets—trade name ............... $ 5600 $ 5,600
Amortizable intangible assets:

Customer Lists ... ..o i i i e 81,631 78,194

Dbt iSSUE COSTS. . v vt et ie et e et iiia i ieerarnanan 9,271 9,271

Total o e 90,902 87.465

Less: accumulated amortization ...........c.cccoiiirrinnnn.. 16,613 10,720

Total amortizable intangibles,net.......................... 74,289 76,745
Total intangible assets, Net . ... ..o ivrtiiiiiniin ., $79,880 $82,345

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $4.5 million,
$4.3 million and $4.1 million, respectively. Amortization expense for each of the years ending
December 31, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 is estimated to be $4.5 million. There is no amortization
expense related to cost of sales,

7. ACCRUED EXPENSES

December 31,
2006 2008
(in thousands)

Accrued compensation and employee benefits, including payroll

taxes and workers compensation insurance.................. $ 9951 §$ 9,758
Accrued Interest .. .ottt i e e e, 3,850 3,329
Accrued utilities . .. ... . e 1,433 1,425
Accrued property, sales and othertaxes ...................... 440 539
Other accrued IMSUTANCE . . vttt et ettt o tteearanansens 1,872 1,940
Other. ... e e 1,113 1,159

Total . ..o e $18,659 $18,150
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8. REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

10%% Senior Discount Notes. On October 27, 2004, Reddy Holdings issued $151 million at maturity
of 10%% Senior Discount Notes due 2012 (the “Discount Notes”) in a private placement offering. The
Discount Notes were sold at 66.333% of the stated principal amount, which resulted in gross proceeds of
$100.2 million. The net proceeds of the offering, together with a dividend of approximately $28.4 million
from the Company’s subsidiary, were used to redeem all of Reddy Holdings’ existing series A preferred
stock for approximately $99.2 million, to pay accumulated dividends on such stock as of the date of
redemption in the amount of approximately $15.0 million and to pay a dividend of approximately
$10.4 million to our common stockholders. In connection with these transactions, the Company made a
special transaction payment of approximately $1.2 million in the aggregate to certain members of
management and certain directors (see Note 10).

Each Discount Note had an initial accreted value of $663.33 per $1,000 principal amount at maturity.
The accreted value of each Discount Note will increase from the date of issuance until November 1, 2008
at a rate of 10%% per annum such that the accreted value will equal the stated principal amount at
maturity on November 1, 2008. Thereafter, cash interest will accrue and be payable semi-annually at a rate
of 10%:% per annum. As of December 31, 2006, the fair value of the Discount Notes was $135.5 million.

The Discount Notes are unsecured obligations of Reddy Holdings and are:
» not guaranteed by any of Reddy Holdings’ subsidiaries;
e senior in right of payment to all of Reddy Holdings’ future subordinated indebtedness;

e equal in right of payment with any of Reddy Holdings’ existing and future unsecured senior
indebtedness;

o cffectively subordinated to Reddy Holdings’ existing and future secured debt, including debt under
the Company’s credit facilities that is guaranteed by Reddy Holdings; and

o structurally subordinated to all obligations and preferred equity of Reddy Holdings’ subsidiaries.

The Discount Notes include customary covenants that restrict, among other things, Reddy Holdings’
ability to incur additional debt or issue certain preferred stock, pay dividends or redeem, repurchase or
retire its capital stock or subordinated indebtedness, make certain investments, create liens, enter into
arrangements that restrict dividends from its subsidiaries, merge or sell all or substantially all of its assets
or enter into various transactions with affiliates. Prior to November 1, 2007, Reddy Holdings may redeem
up to 35% of the principal amount of the Discount Notes at a redemption price of 110.5% of the principal
amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption, with funds raised in equity
offerings that are specified in the indenture governing the Discount Notes. From and after November 1,
2008, Reddy Holdings may redeem any or all of the Discount Notes by paying a redemption premium,
which is initially 5.25% of the principal amount at maturity of the notes and declines annually to 0% for
the period commencing on November 1, 2010 and thereafter. If a change of control occurs prior to
November 1, 2007, Reddy Holdings may, at its option, redeem all, but not less than all, of the Discount
Notes at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the accreted value of the notes as of the redemption
date, (ii) a premium equal to 125% of one year’s coupon payment and (iii} any accrued and unpaid interest
to the date of redemption. If Reddy Holdings experiences a change of control and does not elect to make
the optional redemption described in the previous sentence, Reddy Holdings will be required to make an
offer to repurchase the Discount Notes at a price equal to 101% of their accreted value, plus accrued and

F-19




REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase. Reddy Holdings may also be required to make an offer to
purchase the senior discount notes with proceeds of asset sales that are not reinvested in the Company’s
business or used to repay other indebtedness.

The Discount Notes were subject to registration with the SEC pursuant to the Registration Rights
Agreement (the “Rights Agreement”) entered into at the time of issuance. Pursuant to the Rights
Agreement, Reddy Holdings was required, within 150 days after the issuance date, to file a registration
statement with the SEC to exchange the Discount Notes for new notes of Reddy Holdings having terms
substantially identical in all material respects to the Discount Notes and to use its commercially reasonable
efforts to cause the registration statement to be declared effective within 240 days after the issuance date.
The 150" day following the issuance of the Discount Notes was March 26, 2005. Reddy Holdings did not
file the required registration statement until April 6, 2005 and, as a result, incurred additional interest
expense from March 26, 2005 to April 6, 2005 at an annual rate of 0.50%. The 240" day following the
issuance of the Discount Notes was June 24, 2005 and, as a result of the registration statement not having
been declared effective by the SEC on or prior to that date, Reddy Holdings began accruing additional
interest on the Reddy Holdings notes from June 24, 2005 at an annual rate of 0.50% until the registration
statement was declared effective on August 26, 2005. Additional interest in the amount of $0.1 million was
paid in cash to holders of the Discount Notes on November 1, 2005.

On July 28, 2005, Reddy Holdings obtained the requisite consents from the holders of the Discount
Notes to amend the definition of “Consolidated Net Income” in the indenture governing the Discount
Notes in order to exclude certain one-time costs and expenses associated with Reddy Holdings’ initial
public offering of its common stock (See Note 10).

On August 26, 2005, Reddy Holdings paid $0.4 million to purchase and retire Discount Notes with an
aggregate principal amount at maturity of $0.5 million, A loss of $0.046 million was recognized in
connection with this transaction.

8% Senior Subordinated Notes. On July 17, 2003, the Company completed the sale of $152 million
of 8%% Senior Subordinated Notes due August 1, 2011 (the “Subordinated Notes”) in connection with a
private placement offering. The Subordinated Notes were priced at 99.297%, which resulted in gross
proceeds of $150.9 million. Interest was payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1, commencing
on February 1, 2004. In conjunction with the issuance of the Subordinated Notes, $7.0 mitlion of debt
issuance costs were incurred. In connection with the closing of Reddy Holdings’ initial public offering of its
common stock, substantially all the outstanding Subordinated Notes were redeemed (see discussion below
in “Senior Credit Facilities” for further information).

Senior Credit Facilities. On August 15, 2003, the Company entered into a $170 million senior secured
credit facility, with the lenders being a syndicate of banks, financial institutions and other entities,
including Credit Suisse First Boston as Administrative Agent, Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and
Bear Stearns Corporate Lending, Inc. (the “Old Credit Facility”). The Old Credit Facility provided for a
six-year term loan in the amount of $135 million (the “Original Term Loan”) and a five-year revolving
credit facility (the “Old Revolving Credit Facility”} in the amount of $35 million. On November 6, 2003,
the Old Credit Facility was amended to provide a Supplemental Term Loan (together with the Original
Term Loan, referred to as the “Old Term Loans”) in the amount of $45 million. The Supplemental Term
Loan had substantially the same terms as the Original Term Loan. '
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On August 12, 2005, the Company amended and restated its credit facilities with a syndicate of banks,
financial institutions and other entities as lenders, including Credit Suisse, Cayman Islands Branch, as
Administrative Agent, CIBC World Markets Corp., Bear Stearns Corporate Lending Inc. and Lehman
Commercial Paper, Inc., (the “Credit Facilities”), to increase the maximum amount of the revolving credit
facility to $60 million (the “Revolving Credit Facility”), provide for a $240 million term loan (the “Term
Loan”), reduce the applicable margins on both the Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan and extend
the maturity of the Revolving Credit Facility to August 12, 2010 and the Term Loan to August 12, 2012.
Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility and the Term Loan, along with proceeds from the
Company’s initial public offering (see Note 10), were used to repay the Old Credit Facility, repurchase
substantially alt of the Company’s existing Subordinated Notes and fund other related transactions. A loss
on extinguishment of debt of $28.1 million was incurred in connection with these transactions. The loss was
due to the payment of tender premiums and consent fees to the holders of the Subordinated Notes
($17.3 million), the write-off of deferred debt costs and original issue discount related to the Subordinated
Notes and the Old Credit Facility ($10.6 million) and other fees and expense ($0.2 million).

At December 31, 2006, the Company had $53.6 million of availability under the Revolving Credit
Facility, which was net of outstanding standby letters of credit of $6.4 million. The standby letters of credit
are used primarily to secure certain insurance obligations.

Principal balances outstanding under the Credit Facilities bear interest per annum, at the Company’s
option, at the sum of the base rate plus 0.75% or LIBOR plus 1.75%. The base rate is defined as the
greater of the prime rate (as announced from time to time by the Administrative Agent) or the federal
funds rate plus 0.5%. At December 31, 2006, the weighted average interest rate of borrowings outstanding
under the Credit Facilities was 7.1%. Interest on base rate loans is payable on the last day of cach quarter.
Interest on LIBOR loans is payable upon maturity of the LIBOR loan or on the last day of the quarter if
the term of the LIBOR loan exceeds 90 days. The Company pays a quarterly fee on the average availability
under the Revolving Credit Facility based on an annual rate of 0.5%. As of December 31, 2006, the fair
value of the Term Loan was $240.9 million.

The Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan do not require any scheduled principal payments prior
to their stated maturity dates. Subject to certain conditions, mandatory repayments of the Revolving Credit
Facility and Term Loan (and if the Term Loan is no longer outstanding, mandatory commitment
reductions of the Revolving Credit Facility) are required to be made with portions of the proceeds from
(1) asset sales, (2) the issuance of debt securities and (3) insurance and condemnation awards, subject to
various exceptions. In the event of a change in control, as defined in the Credit Facilities, an event of
default will occur under the Credit Facilities. Under the Credit Facilities, Reddy Group may only pay
dividends to Reddy Holdings if Reddy Group’s leverage ratio for the most recently ended fiscal quarter is
less than or equal to 3.75 to 1.0. In addition, the Credit Facilities prectude Reddy Group from declaring
any dividends if an event of default under the Credit Facilities has occurred and is continuing. In
particular, it will be an event of default if Reddy Group’s leverage ratio exceeds 4.0 to 1.0 or Reddy
Group’s interest coverage ratio is less than 3.25 to 1.0.

F-21




REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The Credit Facilities contain financial covenants, which include the maintenance of certain financial
ratios, as defined in the Credit Facilities, and are collateralized by substantially all of the Company’s assets
and the capital stock of its subsidiaries. Reddy Holdings guarantees the Credit Facilities and such
guarantee is secured by the capital stock of Reddy Group. At December 31, 2006, Reddy Group was in
compliance with these covenants.

On January 1, 2007, Reddy Group merged with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Reddy Ice Corporation,
with Reddy Corp. being the surviving entity. The Credit Facilities were amended on that date to allow the
merger and to provide for the assumption of the Credit Facilities by Reddy Corp.

Interest Rate Hedging Agreement.  Effective September 12, 2005, the Company entered into an
interest rate hedging agreement (the “Hedge™) to fix the interest rate on a portion of its Term Loan. The
Hedge has a term of three years and ten months and an initial notional balance of $220 million. The
notional balance decreases by $20 million on October 12 of each of the following three years, beginning on
October 12, 2006. The Company pays a fixed rate of 4.431% on the notional balance ouistanding and
receives an amount equal to 3-month LIBOR. Any net payable or receivable amount is settled quarterly. If
the Company had been required to scttle the Hedge as of December 31, 2006, it would have received $2.6
million. The fair value of the Hedge is included in the caption “Other Assets” in the consolidated balance
sheet. Changes in the fair value of the Hedge are recorded as “Other Comprehensive Income” in the
consolidated statement of stockholders’ equity. The Company is exposed to risk of loss in the event of non-
performance by the counterparty to the Hedge; however, it does not anticipate non-performance by the
counterparty.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, long-term obligations consisted of the following:

December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
Credit Facility—Term Loans . . ...........cooviiiiiienen... $240,000 $240,000
10%% Senior Discount NOES . ...ttt e eeanans 150,500 150,500
Less: unamortized debt discount on 10%:% Senior Discount
o (3]~ A A (25,706)  (37,8406)
Other. e e e 101 306
Total long-term obligations ....................... ... ... 364,895 352,960
Less: current Maturities. .. ..ot iieannnnnn, 51 65
Long-term obligation, net of current maturities ......... $364,844 $352,895

As of December 31, 2006, principal maturities of long-term obligations for the next five years are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

2007, ........ et e e e e et e e e $ 51
7.1« 25
2000 . L e e e —
7 ) L —
73 ) 1 A 26
20012 and thereafter . ... . i e 364,793

8 X 1 $364,895
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9. INCOME TAXES

The Company reported a profit for tax return purposes during the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2004 and a taxable loss during the year ended December 31, 2005, The total provision for income taxes
varied from the U.S. federal statutory rate due to the following:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)

Federal income tax (cxpense) benefit at statutory rate of 35% .. $(8,481) $6,777 § (9,466)
State income tax (expense) benefit, net of federal income tax

357 1) 1 - (1,088) 767 (838)
Current expiration of state net operating loss carryforwards. . .. — (179) —
Texas margin tax adjustment ........ ..ot 569 — —
Non-deductible expensesand other ......................... (572) _(117) (190)

Total income tax {(expense) benefit........................ $(9,572) $7,248 $(10,494)

The income tax (expense) benefit for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is composed
of the following:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)
Current tax (expense) benefit. ... tn $ (694) $ 133 § (318)
Deferred tax (expense) benefit.. ...l (8,878) 7115 (10,176)
Total tax (expense) benefit . ... ..o, $(9,572) $7,248 $(10,494)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities computed at the statutory rate related to temporary differences

were as follows:
December 31,

2006 2005
(in thousands)

Total current deferred tax assets—otherassets ..........covvivennann $ 1,620 § 2,740

Deferred non-current tax assets (liabilities):
Intangible assets, including goodwill, customer lists and trade names.  $(39,408)  $(38,198)

Property & eqUIPMENt. .....ovuvnirnrr e (47,843}  (40,279)
Net operating loss carryforwards. . ... 40,875 46,453
(010 1ot oL o R 11,157 4,649
Total non-current deferred tax liabilities, net. ................... (35,219)  (27,375)
Valuation allowance for net operating loss carryforwards ........... (933) {(838)
Total non-current deferred tax liabilities, net . ............... ..., $(36,152) $(28,213)
Total deferred tax liabilities, net ............oooii i iiiiiinan, $(34,532) $(25473)

At December 31, 2006, the Company had approximately $105 million of Federal net operating loss
(“NOL”) carryforwards, of which approximately $64 million were generated prior to August 15, 2003.
There are annual limitations on the utilization of the Federal NOL carryforwards generated prior to
August 15,2003 as a result of ownership changes, as defined by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code,
as amended, on and prior to that date. In connection with its initial public offering on August 12, 2005 (see
Note 10), the Company experienced another change in ownership for tax purposes. As a result, the
Company’s ability to use any Federal NOL carryforwards generated on or prior to that date are subject to
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an additional limitation. The new limitation will not have a material impact on the Company’s ability to
utilize such NOL carryforwards. The NOL carryforwards expire between 2011 and 2025. A valuation
allowance of $0.9 and $0.8 miltion has been recorded as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively, to reduce state NOL carryforwards to the amount that management believes is more likely
than not to be utilized.

In connection with the vesting of restricted stock on February 28, 2006 and restricted share units on
August 12, 2006 (see Note 11), the Company realized an excess gross tax benefit of $4.2 million. Because
the Company is not currently making cash payments for income taxes due to its net operating loss
(“NOL”) carryforwards, such excess benefit has not been recognized in the Company’s financial statements
and is being reported as a “suspended NOL carryforward” in the footnotes to the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R).

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company recorded a $2.2 million credit to additional
paid in capital, with an offsetting increase to the NOL carryforward, to reflect the tax benefit of deductions
related to the exercise of employee stock options in March and August 2005 (see Notes 10 and 11).

On May 18, 2006, the state of Texas enacted new corporate tax legislation which changed the existing
state business tax from a franchise tax based on earned surplus or taxable capital to a tax based on a
defined calculation of gross margin (the “Margin Tax”). Because the tax base on the Margin Tax is derived
from an income-based measure, the Margin Tax is an income tax and, therefore, the provisions of SFAS
No. 109 regarding the recognition of deferred taxes apply to the new tax. SFAS No. 109 requires that the
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax law should be included in tax expense
attributable to continuing operations in the period that enactment of the legislation occurs. Therefore, the
Company has recalculated its deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Texas based on the Margin Tax
and recognized a benefit of $0.6 million in 2006,

10. CAPITAL STOCK

Common Stock. Reddy Holdings is authorized to issue up to 75,000,000 shares of common stock, par
value $0.01 per share. Holders of Reddy Holdings’ common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all
matters to be voted on by stockholders and are entitled to receive dividends, if any, as may be declared
from time to time by the Board of Directors of Reddy Holdings. Upon any liquidation or dissolution of
Reddy Holdings, the holders of common stock are entitled, subject to any preferential rights of the holders
of preferred stock, to receive a pro rata share of all of the assets remaining available for distribution to
stockholders after payment of all liabilities.

On February 11, 2005, Reddy Holdings filed a registration statement on Form S-1 with the SEC for a
proposed initial public offering (“IPO”) of its common stock. The registration statement was declared
effective by the SEC on August 10, 2005 at a public offering price of $18.50 per share. A portion of the
shares were sold by Reddy Holdings and a portion were sold by certain of Reddy Holdings’ stockholders.
The number of shares offered by Reddy Holdings and the selling stockholders was 6,911,765 and 3,288,235,
respectively. The selling stockholders also granted the underwriters a 30-day option to purchase up to
1,530,000 additional shares to cover any over-allotments. The underwriters’ over-allotment option was
exercised on August 11, 2005. Reddy Holdings received proceeds from the offering, net of issuance costs,
of $116.2 million on August 12, 2005,
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At the time of its inception in 2003, the stockholders of Reddy Holdings were comprised of Trimaran
Capital Partners (“Trimaran”), Bear Stearns Merchant Banking (“BSMB”) and certain members of the
Company’s scnior management group. On March 17, 2005, certain employees exercised stock options
granted under the 2003 Stock Option Plan to purchase 248,198 shares of Reddy Holdings’ common stock
for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $1.8 million. On August 8, 2005, Reddy Holdings
amended the 2003 Stock Option Plan to accelerate the schedule for vesting of time-based options,
immediately vest all outstanding performance-based options, allow unvested options to be exercised for
restricted stock with identical vesting schedules and provide for accelerated vesting of options upon the
termination of an option holder’s employment under certain circumstances. A charge of $0.5 million was
recorded in “Operating Expenses” in the consolidated statements of operations in connection with the
acceleration of vesting schedules. On August 12, 2005, certain employees and directors performed a
cashless exercise of stock options granted under the 2003 Stock Option Plan, which resulted in the issuance
of 808,818 shares of common stock, 465,651 of which were restricted shares. In accordance with the 2003
Stock Option Plan, as amended, the restricted shares vest on the following schedule: 40% on February 28,
2006, 40% on January 16, 2007 and 20% on July 1, 2007. There were no stock options outstanding as of
December 31, 2006,

Also in connection with the TPO and the related transactions, the Company incurred $6.2 million of
expenses related to payments to BSMB and Trimaran in connection with the termination of the
management services agreement {$4.0 million), transaction bonuses to certain employees ($1.8 million)
and other fees and expenses ($0.4 million). Included in the transaction bonuses is $0.5 million of
compensation expense related to the issuance of 25,817 shares of common stock.

Since the completion of the IPO, the board of directors of Reddy Holdings has declared dividends on
its common stock as follows:

Dividend Dividend Total
Declaration Date Record Date Payable Date Per share Dividend
August 11,2005..... September 30, 2005 October 17, 2005 $0.20788 $4.5 million
December 15, 2005.. December 30, 2005 January 17, 2006 $0.38250 $8.3 million
March 15, 2006 ..... March 31, 2006 April 17, 2006 $0.38250 $8.3 million
June 15,2006....... June 30, 2006 July 17, 2006 $0.40000 $8.7 million

September 15, 2006..  September 29, 2006 Qctober 16, 2006 $0.40000 $8.8 million
December 15, 2006.. December 29, 2006 January 16, 2007 $0.40000 $8.8 million

Preferred Stock. Reddy Holdings is authorized to issue up to 25,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value
preferred stock, all of which is currently undesignated. In 2003, the Company issued 99,050 shares of
Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Series A Preferred Stock”) which were valued at
$1,000 per share. The liquidation preference per share of the Series A Preferred Stock was equal to the
sum of (a) $1,000 plus (b) the amount of all accumulated but unpaid dividends on such shares. The holders
of the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock immediately preceding the dividend payment date
were entitled to receive dividends, as declared by Reddy Holdings’ Board of Directors, at a rate per annum
equal to 12% of the liquidation amount per share. All dividends were cumulative, whether or not earned or
declared, accruing on a daily basis from the issue date and were payable in cash quarterly in arrears on
each dividend payment date commencing on November 15, 2003. If Reddy Holdings did not pay the cash
dividends on a quarterly basis, all unpaid dividends were to be added to the liquidation amount in respect
of such shares on each dividend payment date. If Reddy Holdings failed to make a liquidation payment
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following the occurrence of a liquidation event or default, as defined in the certificate of designations, the
per annum dividend rate would have been increased by 2% per annum during the continuation of any such
event or default. In the event of liquidation, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock would have been
entitled to an amount in cash equal to the liguidation amount for each share. The Company was entitled to
redeem the Series A shares at its option in whele at any time or in part from time to time, subject to
restrictions set forth in the certificate of designations. Series A holders are not entitled or permitted to
vote on any matter upon which the holders of common stock are required or permitted to vote.

On October 27, 2004, the Company issued $151 million in aggregate principal amount at maturity of
its 10%% Senior Discount Notes (sec Note 8). The Company used the net proceeds of the Discount Notes
offering, together with an approximately $28.4 million dividend from its subsidiary, to redeem all of the
Company’s outstanding Series A Preferred Stock (99,175 shares) for an agpregate liquidation amount of
$114.2 million and to pay a dividend of $10.4 million on its common stock. In connection with these events,
the Company made a special transaction payment of approximately $1.2 million in the aggregate to certain
members of management and certain directors.

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

401(k) Plan. The Company has a 401(k) defined contribution savings plan for the benefit of all
employees who have met the eligibility or minimum service requirements to participate. Employees may
contribute up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Service, while Company
contributions are made at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Company contributed $0.5 million,
$0.3 million and $0.2 million during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

2005 Equity Incentive Plan.  On August 8, 2005, the board of directors and stockholders of Reddy
Holdings approved the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan. Under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, up to 750,000
shares of common stock may be issued to employees, directors and certain third parties in connection with
various incentive awards, including stock options, restricted shares and restricted share units. On
October 18, 2005, Reddy Holdings filed a Registration Statement on Form S-8 with the SEC to cover the
reoffer and resale of up to 750,000 shares of Reddy Holdings’ common stock that Reddy Holdings may
issue in the future to participants in the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan.

On November 3, 2005, 9,300 unrestricted common shares were granted to certain employees under
the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan. During 2006 and 2005, the Company granted 30,025 and 692,000 restricted
share units (“RSUs”}, respectively, to certain employees and independent directors. Each RSU provides
for the grant of one share of unrestricted common stock on the date that the vesting terms of each RSU is
satisfied.

Generally, fifty percent of each award of RSUs (the “Time-vested RSUs”) will vest in four equal
annual installments beginning on August 12, 2006 and continuing on August 12 of each of the following
three years, provided the recipient remains employed with the Company through such vesting dates. The
remaining fifty percent of each award of RSUs (the “Performance-vested RSUs™) will vest in four equal
annual installments beginning on August 12, 2006 and continuing on August 12 of each of the following
three years, provided the recipient remains employed with the Company through such vesting dates and
the applicable performance condition for the applicable vesting period is met. The performance condition
for each vesting period will be based on the Company’s carned distributable cash per share (as defined in
the related restricted share unit agreement) for such vesting period. Each vesting period will begin on
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July 1 and end on June 30 of the subsequent year. All RSUs will immediately vest in full, and shares will be
distributed, at the time of a Change in Control (as defined in the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan). If in any
performance period the performance condition for a subsequent performance period is achieved,
Performance-vested RSUs will be entitled to dividend equivalent rights in the subsequent performance
period equal to the dividends which would be payable on the shares of common stock represented by the
RSUs subject to vesting in that period. Payments of such dividend equivalents will be made in cash to the
holders of RSUs at the time of actual dividend payments and will not be subject to vesting. Time-vested
RSUs will not be entitled to dividend equivalent rights.

Based on the Company’s financial results for the vesting period ended June 30, 2006, the performance
condition for the Performance-vested RSUs eligible for vesting on August 12, 2006 was met. A total of
172,375 Time-vested RSUs and Performance-vested RSUs vested on August 12, 2006. As a result of the
performance targets for the remaining three vesting periods being met as of June 30, 2006, the holders of
unvested Performance-based RSUs will be entitled to dividend equivalent payments for the period from
July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2007. During 2006, dividend equivalent payments declared totaled $0.2 million.

Compensation expense associated with the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan was $3.7 million and
$0.8 million during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively. Such compensation expense
was recorded in “Operating Expenses” in the consolidated statements of operations, Approximately
twenty-five percent of the Time-vested RSUs are being expensed during each period ending August 12 in
2006 to 2009. Performance-vested RSUs are being expensed on the same basis as it is management’s belief
that the performance condition for each period will be met. The associated income tax benefit from the
vesting of RSUs and the grant of stock in 2006 and 2005 was $1.5 million and $0.3 million, respectively. As
of December 31, 2006, there was $8.7 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested
RSUs. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.6 years.

The weighted average grant-date fair value of the RSUs granted in 2006 and 2005 was $21.88 per
share and $17.90 per share, respectively. The fair value per share of RSU grants in 2006 was based on the
closing market price of the Company’s stock on the date of grant. The fair value of RSU grants in 2005 was
estimated as the closing market price on the date of grant less the present value of dividends expected to
be paid during the vesting period. The following weighted average assumptions were used to value grants
in 2005:

Market value per share at grantdate ...........ooiiiiviiiiii i $ 2113
Expected quarterly cash dividend pershare ............ ... $0.3825
| B TeTe e 0T | =1 2= O 4.22%
VEStINE PETION . .« .o ettt e et e e et 4 years

The following table indicates share, fair value and remaining life information with respect to RSUs
outstanding under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Number of Average Remaining
Shares Fair Value  Life (in years)

Outstanding, December 31,2005. . ................... 692,000 $17.94 36
Granted. .. oottt e e 30,025 21.88 3.1
VESEEA . v v e e e e et e e e (172375)  17.97 30
FOTFEIted . ... v eneereee e et e e (12,2000 _18.68 32
QOutstanding, December 31,2006................oet 537,450 $18.14 2
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11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

2003 Stock Option Plan.  During 2003, the board of directors approved the 2003 Stock Option Plan
that reserved for issuance 1,555,150 shares of common stock, subject to adjustment under certain
circumstances, This plan provides for the granting of incentive awards in the form of stock options to
directors, officers and employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and affiliates at the discretion
of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. The options issued included both time-based
and performance-based options. In general, the time-based options vested 20% per year, with the initial
vesting of 20% occurring on the first day of the calendar year following the year of grant. The performance
based options were to vest in three tranches based on achieving certain corporate performance targets. All
options granted pursuant to the 2003 Stock Option Plan were to expire ten years after the date of grant.

The 2003 Stock Option Plan was amended on August 8, 2005 (see Note 10). On August 12, 2005, all
outstanding options under the 2003 Stock Option Plan were exercised in exchange for restricted shares
(see Note 10). At December 31, 2006, 57,883 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under the
2003 Stock Option Plan. The Company does not intend to make any additional grants under this plan. In
connection with the scheduled vesting of restricted shares on February 28, 2006, the Company purchased
and retired 51,256 shares of common stock from employees for $1.0 million to provide the employees with
funds to satisfy their minimum statutory federal and state tax withholding obligations related to the vesting
of their restricted stock on that date. The purchase price was $20.20 per share, the closing market price on
February 28, 2006.

Compensation expense associated with the 2003 Stock Option Plan was $1.1 million during the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, excluding the effect of the acceleration of vesting schedules in 2005 as
discussed in Note 10. Such compensation expense was recorded in “Operating Expenses” in the
consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2006, therc was $0.5 million of total
unrecognized compensation costs related 1o unvested restricted shares. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 0.5 years. The associated income tax benefit from the vesting
of restricted stock and the exercise of stock options in 2006 and 2005 was $1.5 million and $2.9 million,
respectively. No restricted shares vested, nor were any stock options exercised, in 2004. The following table
indicates share, fair value and remaining life information with respect to restricted stock outstanding under
the 2003 Stock Option Plan for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Number of Average Remaining
Shares Fair Value  Life (in years)

Outstanding, December 31,2005..................... 465,651 $2.90 1.5
Granted. .. ..o e e — —_ —
Vested . .. i e et e (186,761) 2.90 1.3
Forfeited. ... ...t i it et ei e (1,766) 2.90 13
Outstanding, December 31,2006, . ................... 277,124 $2.90 05
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1l. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

The following table indicates share and exercise price information with respect to options outstanding
under the 2003 Stock Option Plan for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:

Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004
" Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year............ 1,577,845 3725 1,561,285  $7.25
Granted. . ... i _ — 49,087 7.25
Bxercised ......coivviiiiiiiiiiiiiiia (1,577,845) 7.25 — —
Forfeited..........oovienniiiin ., — — (32,527) 7.25
Outstanding atend of year ................. — — 1,577,845 $7.25
Weighted average fair value of options granted
duringtheyear .........cooovvuiinininns $§ — $6.67

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was used determine the fair value of options granted in the
year ended December 31, 2004. The Black-Scholes mode! used the following weighted average
assumptions: risk free interest rate of 4.24%, expected life of 10 years, no dividends to be paid and
volatility of 0%.

The Company has elected to apply the short-cut method to determine the hypothetical additional
paid-in capital (“APIC”) pool provided by FASB Staff Position SFAS 123(R) - 3, “Transition Election
Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards”. The Company has
determined that a hypothetical pool of excess tax benefits existed in APIC as of January 1, 2006, the date
of adoption of SFAS 123(R), related to historical stock option exercises. As of December 31, 2006, the
total excess tax benefits in the APIC pool was approximately $3.8 million. In future periods, excess tax
benefits resulting from stock option exercises will be recognized as additions to APIC in the period the
benefit is realized, provided that the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards have been utilized. If the
Company has net operating loss carryforwards remaining, excess tax benefits will be reported in the
footnotes as a suspended net operating loss carryforward. In the event of a shortfall (i.e., the tax benefit
realized is less than the amount previously recognized through periodic stock compensation expense
recognition and related deferred tax accounting), the shortfall would be charged against APIC to the
extent of previous excess benefits, if any, including the hypothetical APIC pool, and then to tax expense.

I 12. RELATED PARTIES

Trimaran and BSMB were party to a Monitoring and Management Services Agreement (the
“Monitoring Agreement”) pursuant to which they were engaged to provide monitoring and management
services to the Company with respect to financial and operating matters. They also received an annual fee
for ongoing monitoring and management services equal to $0.5 million per annum in the aggregate, which
was subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. The Monitoring Agreement also provided that
Trimaran and BSMB were to be reimbursed for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in connection with
activities undertaken pursuant to the agreement.
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12. RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Trimaran and BSMB also rendered additional services in connection with acquisitions, divestitures
and financings pursuant to the Management Agreement. In connection with these services, they earned a
fee equal to 2% of the value of any such transaction if additional equity is invested. In addition, the annual
monitoring and management services fee will be increased in connection with acquisitions by an amount
equal to 1% of the trailing twelve-month pro forma EBITDA (as defined in the Monitoring Agreement) of
acquired businesses. Trimaran and BSMB collectively earned monitoring and management services fees of
$0.4 million and $0.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively. In
connection with the IPO and the related transactions, the Company paid BSMB and Trimaran $4.0 million
in the aggregate t0 terminate the Management Agreement (see Note 10).

The Company was one of several portfolio companies in which BSMB had an interest. In 2004, BSMB
initiated a process to identify areas where cost savings could be achieved by its portfolio companies by
coordinating the purchases activities of such companies to take advantage of volume purchase discounts
that would otherwise not be available to the Company if it were acting independently. In connection with
this undertaking, BSMB entered into consulting arrangements with individuals and consulting firms. The
consulting fees were charged to BSMB’s portfolio companies based on each company’s pro rata share of
the overall cost savings achieved. The Company’s share of the consulting fees was approximately $0.2
million. The Company recorded a charge for such consulting services in “Operating Expenses” in the
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Certain participants in the Trimaran investment program were affiliated with Canadian Imperial Bank
of Commerce and BSMB was affiliated with Bear Siearns Corporate Lending, Inc., who are both lenders
to the Credit Facility (see Note 8). In connection with the initial public offering of Reddy Holdings’
common stock in August 2005, affiliates of BSMB and Trimaran received an aggregate payment of $3.1
million as compensation for their roles as underwriters for the initial public offering.

Reddy Holdings issued 34,500 shares of restricted common stock and 250 shares of restricted
preferred stock valued at an aggregate $0.5 million at the time of issuance to certain members of the
Company’s senior management on August 14, 2003. The common shares vested on August 14, 2006.
Compensation expense was recognized over the three-year life of the grant. The preferred shares became
fully vested in Qctober 2004 in connection with the redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock. The
related compensation expense was fully recognized by October 2004,

In connection with the issuance of the 10%2% Senior Discount Notes, the redemption of Reddy
Holdings’ Series A Preferred Stock and the payment of a common dividend (see Note 10) in 2004, certain
members of management and certain directors received a special transaction payment totaling $1.2 million.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has leased certain facilities and equipment. Under these and other operating leases,
future minimum annual rentals at December 31, 2006 are approximately $9.7 million in 2007, $7.8 million
in 2008, $6.3 million in 2009, $4.8 million in 2010, $3.8 million in 2011 and $4.8 million thereafter, Rent
expense was $12.7 million, $11.6 million and $9.4 million in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

In June 1999, the Company entered into an exclusive supply agreement with a merchandiser
manufacturer (the “Supply Agreement™) in which it committed to purchase 4,000 merchandisers and/or Ice
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Factory merchandisers and a minimum of $1.5 million of replacement parts per twelve-month period
commencing June 1, 1999. Effective June 1, 2002, the Supply Agreement was amended to modify certain
terms, which included extending the term of the Supply Agreement to May 31, 2012 and reducing the
annual merchandiser and replacement parts commitments to 2,000 units and $0.75 million, respectively.
The Company was in compliance with the amended Supply Agreement at May 31, 2006 and management
believes the Company will be in compliance as of May 31, 2007.

The Company is involved in various claims, lawsuits and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of
business. There are uncertainties inherent in the ultimate outcome of such matters and it is impossible to
presently determine the ultimate costs that may be incurred. Management believes the resolution of such
uncertainties and the incurrence of such costs will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has two reportable segments: (1) ice products and (2) non-ice products and services. ice
produects include the manufacture and distribution of packaged ice products through traditional ice
manufacturing and delivery and The Ice Factory®, which is a proprietary machine that produces,
packages, stores and merchandises ice at the point of sale through an automated, self-contained system.
Non-ice products and services include refrigerated warehouses and the manufacturing and distribution of
bottled water.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 2. The Company
evaluates the performance of each segment based on earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation,
amortization, gain or loss on disposition of assets, impairment of assets, loss on extinguishment of debt and
management agreement termination fees and transaction bonuses and expenses (“Segment EBITDA™).
Segment assets are not a factor in the evaluation of performance. There were no intersegment sales during
the periods presented below.

Segment information for the year ended December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Ece Non-lIce Total
{in thousands)
REVEIUES ..\ o v ettt aee et aareeanrneeaansseannns $333,458 $12,580 $346,038
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation) ................0..ne 204,577 8,274 212,851
Operating EXpPenses. .. ..o v veeneirrernracacaseneaean e 48,204 1,774 49,978
Segment EBITDA ... ..ot $ 80,677 $ 2532 § 83,209
TOtal ASSEES. v vt v e vs v teeeeanreea e enrane i, $590,530 $19,742  $610,272
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14, SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment information for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Ice Non-Ice Total
(in thousands)
Revenues .. ... $304,755 $15,017 $319,772
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation) ..................... 186,668 9,555 196,223
Operating eXpemses. .. .. ... ittt iieneenass 40,172 1,858 42,030
Segment EBITDA ... ... .. .. .. ..c.iiiiiiiiiiiiiann. $ 77915 § 3,604 § 81,519
O [T $578,750  $25,014 $603,764

Segment information for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

lce Naon-Ice Total
{in thousands)
REVeNUES ... ittt i i e e $268,319 $17,408 $285,727
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation) ..............cooov0s. 162,811 10,255 173,066
Operating eXpPenSES. . v vuvuttvrtee e ovaaansnerianaeaaans 35,040 1,888 36,928
SegmentEBITDA ... ... i $ 70468 § 5265 § 75,733
T Ol ASSRES. v vttt ettt et i e e $554947 $33,673 $588,620

A reconciliation of total Segment EBITDA to net income (loss) for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004 was as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(in thousands)
Total Segment EBITDA ............c.oiiiiiniinenin.s. $ 83,209 § 81,519 § 75,733
Depreciation expense related tocostof sales ........1..... (19,517) (18,838) (17,850)
Depreciation and amortization expense................... (5,879) (5,691) {(5,335)
Loss on disposition of assets.............ocoiiiiiiiiiaan (1,107) (1,848) (398)
Impairment of assets ........... ..o i (3,718)  (5,725) —
Management agreement termination fees and transaction

bonuses and eXpenses. . ... ... — (6,171) —

Loss on extinguishmentofdebt . ......................... —  (28,189) —
Interest eXpense. . ..o oviie it e (29,624)  (34,421) (25,105)
Interestincome . ...... .ot iii i, 869 — —
Income tax (expense) benefit .......... ... ... ...l (9,572) 7,248 (10,494)
Netincome (10SS) ... ..o $ 14,661 $(12,116) $ 16,551

Revenues from one group of affiliated customers in the Company’s ice segment represented
approximately 11%, 11% and 10% of the Company’s consolidated revenues in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.
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15. QUARTERLY INFORMATION {(UNAUDITED)

The following table summarizes the unaudited quarterly information for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary for a fair
presentation of the unaudited results for the periods are included.

For the year ended December 31, 2006:

™ ™ 3r 4 Year
{in thousands}
Revenues. ... iiiiiiiiiiiann, $44,808 $113,576 $126,063 $61,591 $346,038
Grossprofit.......oooiiii i 5,681 44 485 48,831 14,673 113,670
Net (loss) income available to common
stockholders............. ... ..o il (8,239) 12,713 15,072 (4,885) 14,661
For the year ended December 31, 2005:
1" 2~ 3 4" Year
(im thousands)
Revenues. ..........oovvvvinviiniiiianns $ 39,244 $93,123 $126,562 $60,843 $319,772
Grossprofit..............oi i 2,824 35290 52773 13,824 104,711
Net (loss) income available to common
stockholders................oi it (10,180) 5,395 (3,093) (4,238) (12,116)
For the year ended December 31, 2004:
1" 2™ ki 4t Year
{in thousands)
REVENUES. . oottt e e ianr ey $ 37,380 $88,529 $106,507 $53,311 $285,727
Grossprofit. ... 4372 34,054 43,091 13,294 94,811
Net (loss) income available to common
stockholders . ................. it (14,789) 12,164 13,233 {(4,640) 5,968

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During January and February 2007, the Company completed the acquisitions of five ice companies for
an aggregate cash purchase price of approximately $11.3 million. Historical annual revenues associated
with the 2007 acquisitions is approximately $8.1 million.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC.
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(CHAPTER 98, TITLE 15 U.S.C. § 7241)

1, William P. Brick, certify that;
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; and

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
controls which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting,.

Date: March 13, 2007

/s/ WILLIAM P. BRICK
William P. Brick, Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC.
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(CHAPTER 98, TITLE 15 U.S.C. § 7241)

I, Steven J. Janusek, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; and

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢)} and 15d-15(¢)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed undcr our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
controls which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2007

/s/ STEVEN J. JANUSEK
Steven J. Janusek, Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION ACCOMPANYING FORM 10-K REPORT
OF
REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC.
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(CHAPTER 63, TITLE 18 U.S.C. §§ 1350(a} AND (b))

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Chapter 63, Title 18 U.S.C.
§8 1350(a) and (b)), each of the undersigned hereby certifies that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006 of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the
information contained in such Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 13, 2007

/s/ WILLIAM P. BRICK
William P. Brick, Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (Chapter 63, Title 18 U.S.C. §§ 1350(a) and (b)), is not a part of the Form 10-K to which it
refers and is, to the extent permitted by law, provided by the above signatory to the extent of his
knowledge.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic
version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc.
and will be retained by Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission
or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION ACCOMPANYING FORM 10-K REPORT
OF
REDDY ICE HOLDINGS, INC.
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
{CHAFPTER 63, TITLE 18 U.S.C. §§ 1350(a) AND (b))

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 {Chapter 63, Title 18 U.S.C. §§ 1350(a)
and (b)), each of the undersigned hereby certifies that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006 of Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the
information contained in such Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 13, 2007

/s/ STEVEN J. JANUSEK
Steven J. Janusek, Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (Chapter 63, Title 18 U.S.C. §§ 1350(a) and (b)), is not a part of the Form 10-K to which it
refers and is, to the extent permitted by law, provided by the above signatory to the extent of his
knowledge.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic
version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc.
and will be retained by Reddy Ice Holdings, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission
or its staff upon request.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following chart shows a comparison of total stockholder return, assuming reinvest-
ment of dividends, for (i) the Company’s common stock, (ii) the Russell 2000 Index and (iii) a custom
composite index, in each case measuring performance for the period beginning with the price at market
close on August 10, 2005, the first day on which the Company’s common stock was publicly traded, and
ending December 31, 2006.

The custom composite index includes companies traded on the NYSE and NASDAQ
with market capitalizations of between $250 million and $750 million. The Company has included the
custom composite index because the Company does not believe that any published industry or
line-of-business index exists which relates to the packaged ice industry and no meaningful group of peer
issuers exists.

Comparison of 16 Month Cumulative Total Return
Among Reddy lce Holdings, Inc., the Russell 200¢ Index
and a Peer Group
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Forward-Looking Statements

The information cantained in this Annual Report contains various “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Refarm Act
of 1985. These forward-locking statements are based on management’s belief as well as assumptions made by and information currently available to management.
Although the company believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations
wilk prave to have been correct. Such statements contain certain risks, uncertainty and assumptions. Should one or more of these risks materialize, or should
underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those expected. For a more thorough discussion of these factors, please refer to
the company’s “Uncertainty of Forward-Looking Statements and Information” on page 2 of the company’s Annual Report an Form 10-K, dated March 13, 2607.
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